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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
BHAGWATI LIMESTONE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Bhagwati Limestone Company Private
Limited("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
alter refcrred to as " Ind AS financial statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the
aforesaid Ind AS linancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, its
profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {(SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartcred Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. '

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, hut does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thcreon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the [nd AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have perfonmed, we conclude that there is a material
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misstatemnent of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(3) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequale intcrnal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Ind AS financia! statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ablllty to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantec that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detectmg
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+ Obtain an 1inderstanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropnatc in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressirig our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. [However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue as
a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the

Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

{A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the besi ol our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;



c)

d)

e)

(B)

il

(€)
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The Batance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written rcpresentations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B"; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rule |1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts,

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented
upon by us.

For G.P Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

Partner

Membership No: 030850
Mumbai

Date: 20" April, 2022

UDIN: 22030850 AHLJDA7937
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REFORT

[Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even datc to the members of BHAGWATI LIMESTONE
COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

1) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

a) (A) The company has maintained proper rccords showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The company has also maintained proper records showing full particulars, of intangible assets.
b) The Property, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management in a
phased manner, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the books
records and the physical fixed asscts have been noticed.

¢) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

d) As per information provided and explained to us by the company has not revalued any of its
property, plant and equipment (including right of use of assets) or intangible asset or hoth
during the year.

e} As per information provided and explained to us by the company, no proceedings have been
initiated - or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the

“Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

2) (a) As per information provided and explained to us by company, physical verification of inventory has
been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate; no discrepancies were found in each class of inventory
and inventory is properly dealt in the books of account;

(bjthe company does not have any working capital hence the clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

3) The company has not made any investments during the year. Also it has not provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, the clause 3(iii) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

4y As the company does not have any loans, investments, guarantees, and sccurity, the clause 3(iv) of the
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Order is not applicable to the Company.

5) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not

accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and rules framed thereunder,

6) The company is not required to maintain any cost records as specified by central government under

subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and hence the clause 3(vi) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

7)(a) According to information and explanation provided to us, the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-lax, scrvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess
and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year and no such dues are

outstanding for more than six months [rom the date they became payable.

b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which is required to be deposited on
account of any dispute, hence the provisions of clause 3(vii}(b) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

8)As per information and explanation provided to us, there are no transactions which were not recorded in
books of accounts and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under Income tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

9) in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
borrowed any money from financial institutions, banks or debenture holders. Accordingly, the

provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

10} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised
any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments),
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally conlvertiblc) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Ordcr are

not applicable to the Company.
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11) a)According to information and explanation provided to us no fraud was recognized by the company

or fraud on the company hence clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

12) In our opinion and according to information and explanation provided to us, the Company is not a

Nidhi company. Accordingly paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

13) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as rcquired by the

applicable accounting standards.

14) The company is not required to appoint the Internal Auditor for the period under audit and hence clause

3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

15) According to explanation provided to us, company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him and hence clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the

company.

16) [n our opinion and as per information and cxplanation given to us the company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence provisions of clause

3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

17) The Company has incurred not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial year, hence clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

18) The company is audited by its previous auditor only in the current year, hence clause 3(xviii) of the

Order is not applicable to the company.

19) Based on financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report and that the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance

sheel as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
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20) The company is not required to spent any amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies

Act hence clause 3(xx) is not applicable to the company.

21) In our opinion, these are standalone financial statements, hence clause 3(xxi) is not applicable to the

company.

For G. P. KAPADIA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No,104768W

FALUL Ihe LFCNAIL

Partner

Membership No. : 030850
Place; Mumbai

Date : 20th April, 2022

UDIN: 22030850 AHLJDA7937
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
[ndependent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of BHAGWATI LIMESTONE
COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BHAGWATI
LIMESTONE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Respounsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAID). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adcquate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to exprcss an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting bascd on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™} and the Standards on
Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical reguirements and plan end perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, asscssing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s intemal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

Reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements [or external purposes in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2)provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

stalements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Becausc of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
passibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting (o future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}).

For G.P. KAPADIA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.104768W

AlUl By, LPeNdl

Partner

Membership No. ; 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date: 20th April, 2022

UDIN: 22030850AHLJDA7937
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Note 1: Significant Accounting Pelicies
i» Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™), and amendments thereto other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held
on Apr 20, 2022.

il Basis of Preparation & Presentation:
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The statement of financial position presents Assets and Liabilities as current and non-current. For this purpose,
an asset is classified as current if:

It is expected to be realized, or is intended to he sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or It is expected to realize the asset within 12 months after the
reporting period; or

The asset Is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted frorm being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Similarly, a hability is dassified as current if:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its setlement by the issue of equity instruments
at the option of the counterparty does not affect: this classification.

All other lfabilities are classified as non-current.
jiii. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS reguires estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the finandal staternents, the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the disdosures relating to
contingent llabllities as of the date of the financlal statements. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates
are recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialize.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

iv.  Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE):

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, induding import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use,
including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
casts are incurred.
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If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when they
meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

V. Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of property, plant & equipment over its useful
life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013

Depreciable amount for property, plant & equipment is the cost of property, plant & equipment less its estimated
residual value. The useful life of property, plant & equipment is the period over which property, plant &
equipment is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the number of production or similar units expected
to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

vi. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle
such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of
the discount is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A presert obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the contral of the Campany.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingert assets are not recognized or disclosed in financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

vii. Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a
customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.
= Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account
the amount of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing taxes on sales. Any amount receivable from the
customer and are recognized after the control of the goods sold are transferred.
= Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is established.

= Difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment is recognized as profit or loss
on sale / redemption on investment on trade date of transaction.
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viii. Income Taxes:
Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax
laws.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet methed, on all temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted by the reporting date. Tax relating to
items recognized directly in equity is recegnized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle cument
tax liabilitles and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultanecusly.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT):

MAT is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI,
the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and is shown as MAT Credit
Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay
normal Income Tax during the specified period.

ix. Earnings Per Share:

The basic Earnings Per Share (CEPS”} is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year,

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per share, net profit/{loss) after tax for the year attributable to
the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

x. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the staternent of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand, short-term
deposits with banks and short-term highly liguid investments that are readily convertible into cash which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
oommitments,
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Note 18 - Disclosure of Related Parties / Related Party as required by Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™

(A) List of Related Parties: {in ¥ Lac)
Name of Related Party Country of Incorporation % Shareholding and Voting
power
(I) Holding Company: As at As at
Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021
UltraTech Cement Limited 100%

{B)The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:(in¥ Lac)
Period Ended | Period Ended

Nature of Transaction/Relationship Mar 21, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021
Receiving of Services: _
Holding Company:
UltraTech Cement Limited {Including Tax) 17.26 23.14
Total 17.26 23.14

Providing Sales/Services:
UltraTech Cement Limited (Including Tax)

Total
17.26 23.14
(€) Outstanding Balances: {in ¥ Lac)
As at As at

Nature of Transaction/Relationship Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021
Trade payables:
Holding Company:
UitraTech Cement Limited 56.88 39.91
Other Current Liabilities:
Holding Company:

UltraTech Cement Limited 28,85 45.18
Total 85.73 85.09

Terms an nditions of transactions with Related Parties:
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the Period-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no

guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

Note 19 - Earning per Share (EPS}: {in ¥ Lac)
porcos peicdEnded [ et s
(A) Basic EPS:

(i} Net Profit/(loss) attributable to Equity Sharehoiders (4.69) {5.08)
(i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) 11,900 11,900
Basic EPS (Rs.) (1}/(ii) (39.45) (42.75)







Bhagwati Limestone Company Private Limited

Note 22

In light of the COVID-19 outbreak being declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization, the Company has been taking
various precautionary measures to protect employees and workmen, their families, and the eco system in which they interact, while
at the same time ensuring business continuity. The company expects to recover the camying amount of all its assets including
inventory, receivables and loans in the ordinary course of business based on information available on current economic conditions.
The company will continue to moenitor any material changes on future economic conditions.

Signatures to Note 1" to '21° For and on behalf of the Board

In terms of our reports attached.
For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Acoountants

Firm Registration No: 104768W

! Dase

ATUL B. DESAI MB rwal Atul Daga

Partner Director Director
Membership No: 30850 DIN-03416254 DIN-06416619

Mumbai, Apr 20, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
GOTAN LIMESTONE KHANLI UDYOG PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of GOTAN LIMESTONE KHANIJ UDYOG
PRIVATE LIMITED("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notcs to the Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as " Ind AS financial statements™)

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and aceording to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") in the mannet so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principies generally accepted in India, of the state of afTairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, its
profit {including other comprehensive income), changes in cquity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specitied under Section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whote, and in forming cur opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and cur auditor’s report thereon.,

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing sa, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
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misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Direclors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and appliication of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completencss of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to tiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our cobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
duc to [raud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

» Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concem,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements’ regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report uniess law or
regulation preciudes pubiic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the

Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

{A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;



d)

¢)
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid [nd AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on rccord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal {inancial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B"; and

(B} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with

),

ii.

il

Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if amy, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

{C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Rcport under Section 197(16) of

the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in
exccss of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not preseribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented
upon by us.

For G.P Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

A . Desal

FPartner

Metnbership No: 030850

Mumbai .

Date: 20" April, 2022

UDIN: 22030850 AHLKOM9032
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
[ndependent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of GOTAN LIMESTONE KHANIJ
UDYOG PRIVATE LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

1} Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The company has also maintained proper records showing full particulars, of intangible assets.
b) The Property, Plant and Equipment’s have been physically verified by the management in a
phased manner, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
naturc of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no materdal discrepancies between the books
records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

¢) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

d) As per information provided and cxplained to us by the company has not revalued any of its
property, plant and equipment (including right of use of assets) or intangible asset or both
during the year.

e) As per information provided and explained to us by the company, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the

“Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

2} (a) As per information provided and explained to us by company, physical verification of inventory has
been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate; no discrepancies were found in each class of inventory
and inventory is properly dealt in the books of account;

(b)the company does not have any working capital hence the clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

3) The company has not made any investments during the year. Also it has not provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited- Liability Partnerships or any other parties, the clause 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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4) As the company does not have any loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the clause 3(iv) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

3) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not

accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

6) The company is not requircd 1o maintain any cost records as specified by central government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and hence the clause 3(vi) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

7)(a) According to information and explanation provided to us, the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess
and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year and no such dues are

outstanding for more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no statytory dues referred to in sub-clause (a} which is required to be deposited on
account of any dispute, hence the provisions of clause 3(vii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

8)As per information and explanation provided to us, there are no transactions which were not recorded in
bocks of accounts and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax asscssments
under Income tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the provisicns of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

9) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
borrowed any money from financial institutions, banks or debenture holders. Accordingly, the

provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

10) tn our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised
any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments),
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionallly convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are

not applicable to the Company.
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11) a)According to information and explanation provided to us no fraud was recognized by the company

or fraud on the company hence clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

12) in our opinion and according to information and explanation provided to us, the Company is not a

Nidhi company. Accordingly paragraph 3{xit) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

13} All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

14) The company is not required to appoint the Internal Auditor for the period under audit and hence clause

3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

15) According to explanation provided to us, company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons' connected with him and hence clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the

company.

16} In our opinion and as per information and explanation given to us the company is not requircd to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence provisions of clause

3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the company,

17Ty The Company has incurred not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial year, hence clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

18) The company is audited by its previous auditor only in the current year, hence clause 3(xviii) of the

Order is not applicable to the company.

19) Based on financial ratios, ageing and expccted dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilitics, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report and that the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
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20) The company is not required to spent any amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies

Act hence clause 3(xx) is not applicable to the company.

21) In our opinion, these are standalone financial statements, hence clause 3(xxi} is not applicable to the

company.

For G, P. KAPADIA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.104768W

Atul B, Desai

Partner

Memhership No. : 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date : 20th April, 2022

UDIN: 22030850AHLKOM®2032
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of GOTAN LIMESTONE KHANIJ
UDYOG PRIVATE LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GOTAN LIMESTONE
KHANIJ UDYOG PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Manapgement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intermal financial
controls based on the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Acl, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audil in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls opcrated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to proyide
Reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
staternents for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2)provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statemcnis.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may detcriorate.

Opinion ‘

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAT).

For G. P. KAPADIA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.104768W

LSRAUL L, LFUNH)
Partoer
Membership No. : 030850
Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th April, 2022
UDIN: 22030850AHLKOM9032















Gotan Lime Stone Khanij Udyog Private Limited

Note 1 (A) Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

Company Overview

Gotan Lime Stone Khanij Udyog Private Limited {(the Company) is a Private Limited Company incorporated in India
having its registered office at Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India. The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of
Mining of Lime Stone.

Sianificant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (End AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)(Amendment) Rules, 2016, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and guidelines
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
April 20, 2022.

(b} Basis of Preparation and Presentation:

(©

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value on the consideration given in exchange for goods and service.

The Company has ascertained its operating cycke as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non-Current
classification of its Assets and Liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

(i) It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

(i) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(i) It is expected to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv} The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if;

(i) Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or
(i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting peried. Terms of a liability that could result in its settement by the issue of equity
instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this dassification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE):

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including impeort duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and
any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and lecation for its intended use, indluding
relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the itern can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the period in which they were incurred.
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If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items {major
components) of PPE.

Material tems such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when they meet
the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(d) Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act or as per technical assessment,

Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of PPE is the period
over which PPE is expected to be available for use by the Company, or the number of production or similar units
expected to be obtained from the asset by the Company.

The Company has compenentized its PPE and has separately assessed the life of major components.

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in Schedule II to the
Act. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the PPE and the
estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management’s best estimation of obtaining economic benefits from those
classes of assets.

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition and in case of
Projects from the date of commencement of commercial preduction. Depreciation on deductions/disposals is provided
on a pro-rata basis up to the month preceding the month of deduction/disposal.

{e) Intangible Assets and Amortization:

(N

= Intangible Assets acquired separately:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are camried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumuiated impairment, if any. The Company determines the amortization period as the period over which the
future economic benefits will flow to the Company after taking into account all relevant facis and circumstances. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

» Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives are as under:

No | Nature Useful life
1 | Mining Rights Over the petiod of the respective mining
agreement
Inventories:

Inventories are valued as follows:
«  Raw materials, fuel, stores & spare parts and packing materials:

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value {NRV). However, these items are considered to be realisable at
cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

*  Work-in- progress (WIP), finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run inventories:

Valued at lower of cost and NRY. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw materials, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of
inventories is computed on weighted average basis.

«  Waste / Scrap:
Waste / Scrap inventory is valued at NRV.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
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(g) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an

obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted
10 reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabllities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that
may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and is recognised.

(h) Mines Restoration Provision:

®

@)

An obligation for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental ¢costs arises when environmental disturbance is caused
by the development or ongeing extraction from mines. Costs arising from restoration at closure of the mines and other
site preparation work are provided for based on their discounted net present value, with a corresponding amount
being capitalised at the start of each project. The amount provided for is recognised, as soon as the obligation to incur
such costs arises. These costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the operation through
the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the discount on the provision. The cost are reviewed periodically
and are adjusted to reflect known developments which may have an impact on the cost or life of operations. The cost
of the related asset is adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors such as updated cost estimates, new
disturbance and revisions to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated prospectively over the lives
of the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of the discount is shown as a finanoe cost in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer
for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
SErvices.

* Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of
discounts, volume rebates, outgaing taxes on sales. Any amount receivable from the customer and are recognised
of the goods sold are transferred.

* Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is established.

s Difference between the sale price and camying value of investment is recognised as profit or loss on sale /
redemption on investment on trade date of transaction.

Income Taxes:

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the cumrent accounting period in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
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(k)

)

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognised directly in
equity or OCI is recognised in equity or OCI and not in the Statement Profit and Loss. MAT Credits are in the form of
unused tax credits that are carried forward by the Company for a specified period of time, hence it is grouped with
Deferred Tax Asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax autherity, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

Eamings Per Share:

The basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS™) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable
to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable to the
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with
banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
HARISH CEMENT LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of HARISH CEMENT LIMITED("the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(incivding Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement for the vear then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "
Ind AS financial statements")

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in india, of the state ol alfairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, its
profit {including othcr comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
[143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements section of our rcport. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants ol India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providc a
basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Other [nformation

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conelusion thereon,

ln connection with cur audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
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misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directots are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the statc of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether duc to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aliernative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for oversceing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forpery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

» Obtain an undcrstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we arc also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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« Evaluatc the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial staterments, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statcment that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the mailers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adversé consequences
of deing so would reasonahly be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Lhe Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"} issued by the

Central Government in terms ot Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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¢} The Balance Sheect, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the writlen representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on rccord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
scparate Report in "Annexure B"; and

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements.

i. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to he transferred, to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

{C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Repert under Section 197(16} of
the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 10 us, the
remuneration paid by the Company 1o its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in
excess of the {imit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented

upon by us.

For G.P Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

Al.ul iRy LATOEL

FParmer i

Membership No: 030850
Mumbai Lo

Date: 20" April, 2022

UDIN: 22030850 AHLMFE4595
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of HARISH CEMENT LIMITED on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

1} Inrespect ol the Company’s Propcrty, Plant and Equipment:

a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and sitnation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The company has aiso maintained proper records showing full particulars, of intangible assets.
b) The Property, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management in a
phased manner, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
nature ol its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the books
records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

¢} The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

d) As per information provided and explained to us by the company has not revalued any of its
property, plant and equipment (including right of use of assets) or intangible asset or both
during the year.

¢) As per information provided and explained to us by the company, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company lor holding any benami property under the

“Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

2) (a) As per information provided and explained to us by company, physical verification of inventory has
been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate; no discrepancies were found in each class of inventory
and inventory is properly dealt in the books of account;

{bjthe company does not have any working capital hence the clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

3) The company has not made any investments during the year. Also il has not provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partmerships or any other parties, the clause 3(iii} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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4) As the company does not have any loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the clause 3(iv) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

5) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not

accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

6) The company is not reguired to maintain any cost records as specified by central government under
subsection (1} of section 148 of the Companies Act and hence the clause 3(vi) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

7)(a) According to information and explanation provided to us, the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess
and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year and no such dues are

outstanding for more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which is required to be deposited on
account of any dispute, hence the provisions of clause 3(vii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the

Comparny.

8)As per information and explanation provided to us, there are no transactions which were not recorded in
books of accounts and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under Income tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

9) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
borrowed any money from financial institutions, banks or debenture holders. Accordingly, the

provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

10) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised
any meneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments),
preferential aliotmenl or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are

not applicable to the Company.



G. P. KAPADIA & CO.

11) a)According to information and explanation provided to us no fraud was recognized by the company

or fraud on the company hence clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

12} In our opinion and according to information and explanation provided to us, the Company is not a

Nidhi company. Accordingly paragraph 3(xii} of the Ordcr is not applicable to the company.

13) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

14} The company is not required to appoint the Internal Auditor for the period under audit and hence clause

3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the ecompany.

15) According to explanation provided to us, company has not entcred into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him and hence clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the

comparty.

16) In our opinion and as per information and explanation given to us the company is not required to be

registered under scction 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Aet, 1934 and hence provisions of clause

3{xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

17} The Company has incurred not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial year, hence clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

18) The company is.audited by its previous auditor only in the cutrent year, hence clause 3(xviii) of the

Order is not applicable to the company.

19) Based on financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report and that the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balanee

sheet as and when they [all due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
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20) The company is not required to spent any amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies

Act hence clause 3(xx) is not applicable to the company,

21) In our opinion, these are standalone financial statements, hence clause 3(xxi) is not applicable to the

company.

For G, P. KAPADIA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.104768W

Atul B, Desai

Partner

Membership No. : 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date : 20th April, 2022

UDIN: 22030850AHLMFE4595
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

fReferred 10 in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of HARISH CEMENT LIMITED on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Sectton 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HARISH CEMENT
LIMITED (*“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the fiancial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated cffectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
intcrnal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and aperating eftectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgetnent, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
Reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the mainienance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2)provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
slatements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
crror or [raud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, thc Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intermal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporling issued
by The Institute ol Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

For G. P, KAPADIA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.104768W

- N

Partner

Membership No. : 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date: 20th April, 2022

UDIN: 22030850AHLMFE4595
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Harish Cement Limited

Note-1; Accounting Policies

{i) Statement of Compliance

These standalane financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {ind
AS) as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act”’}, other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India {SEBI), as applicable.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting
held on 20%April 22,

{il} Basis of Preparation & Presentation:
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services,

The statement of financial position presents Assets and Liabilities as current and non-current. For this
purpose, an asset is classified as current if:

a) It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
or

b} It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or It is expected to realize the asset within 12 months
after the reporting period; or

c) The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Simitarly, a liability is classified as current if:

a) Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or It is held primarily for the purpose of
trading; or

b) Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

c} The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liahility for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liabitity that could result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

(i) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the
financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and
the disclosures rejating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes different from the estimates.
Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are
known or materialize.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.



. Harish Cement Limited

{iv) Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE):

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location
for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning,
less accumnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred after
the PPE have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

i significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate

items {major components) of PPE.
Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE

when they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

{v) Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of property, plant & equipment
over its useful life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule

1l to the Companies Act, 2013

Depreciable amount for property, plant & equipment is the cost of property, plant & equiprment less its
estimated residual value. The useful life of property, plant & equipment is the period over which
property, plant & equipment is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the number of
production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

Note 15— Capital and Other Commitments:

1.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not provided for [net of
advances) Rs.5965.65 Lacs {Previous Year'Rs.5965.65 Lacs).

2. Certain lang owners filed writ petitions challenging {1} acquisition of private lands by the State of Himachal
Pradesh for setting up of cerment plant and (2) environmental clearance granted to the project, before the
High Court of Himachal Pradesh. The High Court of Hirachal Pradesh guashed the notifications issued under
Section & and 7 of the Land Acquisition Act, 1894 and also the environmental clearance granted for the
project on procedural grounds. The Company had filed Special Leave Petitions before the Hon'ble Supreme
Court of India challenging the order of the High court of Hirmachal Pradesh. The Special leave Petitions filed
by the Company has been admitted and converted to Civil appeals Nos. 1636 — 1641 of 2013.The matter is

now pending with supreme court.

Note 16 - Related party disclosures:
A) List of Related Parties where control exists:

% Shareholding and
Principal Place of Voting Power
Name of the Related Party Business As at s at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{1} Holding Company: .
UltraTech Cement Limited India 100%
Disclosure of related party transactions: Amountin %
As at 31st As at 31st

Nature of Transactions March’ 2022 March’ 2021
Share Application Money Received from UTCL 22,54,200 | NiL
Share Issued to UTCL {Including Premium Amount) 22,54,200 | NIL







Harish Cement Limited

[ NotBio Fina MBSt td. ]
Note 20

In light of the COVID-19 outbreak being declared a pandemic by the World Health Organisation, the Company has been
taking vartous precautionary measures to protect employees and workmen, their familles, and the eco system in which they
interact, while at the same time ensuring business continulty. The company expects 1o recover the carrying amount of att
its assets Incuding Inventory, recgivables and lpans in the ordinary course of business based an information avatlable on
current economic conditions. The company will continue to monitor any material changes on future econemic conditions.

Signatures to Notes ‘1’ to 20 " for and an behalf of the Board

In terms of our reporis attached.

For G.P. Xapadla & Co. Director
Chartered Actoyntants {M. 5. Agarwaz} {Arun Daga)
Firm Registration No: 104768W DIN : 034156258 DIN: 00703251

tMembership No: 030850
Partner

Mumbat: 20th April, 2022



& Cash Row from Operating Ackhities:

Mar 31, 3033

Masr 31, 2021

Prodfit & {Loss) Before tax (0.09) {0.08)
Adhostments for:
Papreciation & Amortisation
{Incrence)/ Deceace In current Assets {2.65) {1401)
Encrease f{Decreasa) in Trade Payable and other Liabliites 0.10 {251}
ot Cash Generated from Operating Actvites (A) _ — (2.60) e {3.58}
B Cash Flow brom Investing Activities:
CWINAdvances & profact Duov.Expas) {16.53) {16.50)
Net Cash eved In Inresting Acthvitkes (B) [16.53]) (16.50)
€ Cash Flow from Financing Ackivitles:
Shares Iszved Amount (Incuding Premium) 22.44 0.00
Het Cash Genemted [ [Used) from Finandng Activities (C) 2244 0,00
Net Incyease f{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivetenis (& + B + C) asi (20,08}
mm%%nmgmmgum\mr 0,55 ... 3nsY
Cash and Equl nts et tha End of the Year o —— ] I _ . Dnss

Motes:
1. Caph floor statemnant ks been prepzred under the indlrezt metfiod 25 met out In IS ~ 7 speccifing wnder Section 113 of Ha Comprnies Aok, 2013,

The Acenpdnying netes bre an b it of Financial Siatements e _ .
In tanms of car report sttached,
For GF. Kapadia & Co. f of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accointants
Firm Begistration No: 104765W
L
Qamd- X~
N — Arlin DagE
Membership Ko:03E§20 Director
Partner LAN INIRIBEDS DIN 0TS 781

Mumbal : 20th Apeil 23023



Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of
UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of UltraTech Nathdwara
Cement Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022,
and the standalone statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive income),
standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the yearthen
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information {“the Standalone Financial Statements”}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2022, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”} specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {“ICA1") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

4.

We draw attention to Note 31 of the Standalone Financial Statements, which refers to the order
dated 31 August 2016 {penalty of Rs. 167.32 crores} of the Competition Commission of India (‘CCl’}
against which the Company had filed appeal. Upon the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal
(“NCLAT”) disallowing its appeal against the CCl order dated 31 August 2016, the Company has filed
an appeal before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, which has by its order dated 5 October 2018,
granted a stay against the NCLAT order. Consequently, the Company. has deposited an amount of
Rs. 16.73 crores equivalent to 10% of the penalty of Rs. 167.32 crores recorded as asset. The
Company, backed by legal opinions taken by Ultratech Cement Limited - Parent Company, believes
that it has a good case basis which no provision has been recognised in the books of account, Qur
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.



Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
Standalone Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon, The Other Information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based onthe work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the
matter to those charged with governance.

Management's responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

8.

10.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act,
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including
the Indian accounting standards (“Ind AS”} specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

11.

12,

13.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high fevel of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, designh and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

12,2, Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}(i) the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,

12.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

12.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

12.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.



14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

15.

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

1s6.

The comparative Standalone Financial Statements of the Company forthe yearended 31 March 2021
included in these financial statements have been audited by the predecessor auditor who had
expressed an unmodified opinion as per their report dated 4 May 2021 and which has been furnished
to us by the management and has been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit. Qur opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17.

18.

As required by the Companies {(Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

18.1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

18.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those books.

18.3. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss including other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the standalone cash flow
statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

18.4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

18.5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.



13,

18.6.

18.7.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

19.1,

13.2.

19.3.

19.4,

1935,

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements - Refer Note 31 to the Standalone
Financial Statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities
{“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our
notice that caused usto believe that such representation contains any material misstatement.

The management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s} or entity{ies), including foreign entities {“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable
audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that such representation contains any material misstatement.



19.6. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no dividend was
declared and / or paid during the year and accordingly reporting on compliance with of
Section 123 of the Act will not be applicable for the Company.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

t|.x1l-llﬂlll ¥ J1004an

Partner

ICA} Membership No: 117348
UDIN: 22117348AHWHMP5851

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 April 2022



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of
UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Referred to in paragraph 17 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

{a)

(b}

{c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment {“PPE”).

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular
programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, certain PPE were physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
ourexamination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties
{other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of
the Company except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company.

Rs in Crore
Whether Reason
Gross promoter, . for not
Description carrying director Period being
Held in name of ] held N
of property value or their held in
. {Years)
relative or name of
employee company
15.41 Amraram S/o Bheraram No 9-10
4.10 Balwant /o Pemaram No 9-10
20.22 Bhukaram S/o Chimanlal No 9-10
17.67 Mahendra S/o Ramlal No 9-10
18.13 Mahendra S/o Ruparam No 9-10 Transfer
Freehold 1.23 Tejaram S/o Vanaram No 9-10 in
tand 2.65 Parmai w/o Ranga Ram No 9-10 progress
2.66 Ranga Ram s/o Chnadra Ram No 9-10
Krishna Murarka 5/o No 9-10
2.60
Omprakash
1.72 Balwant S/0 Prema ji No 9-10
1.46 Amararam s/o Bheraram No 9-10
Total 87.85

(d} Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the

year.




(e)

{a}

(b)

iii. {a)

(b)

()

(d)

In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the physical
verification of inventories has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management
and, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory. For stocks lying with third
parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and in respect of goods-in-
transit, subsequent goods receipts have been verified or confirmations have been obtained
from the parties.

in our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions
which are secured on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly
returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties, and the details are mentioned in the following table

(Rs in Crore)

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in the
nature of loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil Nil
Joint Ventures NA NA NA NA
Associates NA NA NA NA
Others Nil Nil 0.21 Nil
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nit Nil
Joint Ventures NA NA NA NA
Associates NA NA NA NA
Cthers Nil Nil 0.16 Nil

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided during the year are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
loans and advances in the nature of loans, there is no stipulated schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest on loans granted by the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and ¢
overdue in respect of loans and advances in the nature



vi.

vil.

(e} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, neither loans or

(a)

advances in nature of loans have been renewed or extended nor any fresh loans have been
granted to settle the overdue of existing loans.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has granted following [oans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters/Related Parties
(as defined in section 2(76) of the Act) which are either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment:

Rs in Crore

Aggregate amount of loans/ All Parties Promoters Related Parties
advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on demand (A) Nil Nil Nil

- Agreement does not specify _
any terms or period of 100.87 Nil 100.87
repayment (B}
Total (A+B) 100.87 Nil 100.87
Percentage of loans/ advances
in nature of loans to the total 100% - 100%
loans

In our opinion, according te the infermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has complied with the
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act with respect to the loans given, investments
made, guarantees given and security provided.

In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not accepted any deposits
or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year in terms of
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph
3{v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company as specified
under section 148{1) of the Act, for the maintenance of cost records in respect of products
manufactured by the Company, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete.

In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customns, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by
the Company with the appropriate authorities

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrear- —- -+ ** *4-=-L 2nm1
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payabl




viii.

(b)

(a)

{b)

{c)

{d)

(e}

{f)

In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, as per Approved Resolution Plan upon
discharge and payment of resolution amount, the Company shall be immune from attachment
or interference and shall not be subject matter of any claim in any proceedings for any past
transactions carried out by or for any acts or omissions of the Company, or it's promoter till 19
November 2018. Accordingly, the following dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, have not been deposited to/with the
appropriate authority on account of any dispute, since 19 November 2018.

{(Rs. in Crore}

Name of the Nature of the Amount | Period to Forum Remarks,
Statute Dues which the where if any
amount dispute is
: relates pending
Rajasthan Differential Land 1.53 2020-21 Hon'ble High
Finance Act. 2020 Tax, Interets & Court,
’ Penalty Jodhpur

In our opinion and accordingto the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across
any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

in our opinion, according to the information and explanation and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings to financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){c) of the
Orderis not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, considering the commitment
provided by the Holding Company with respect to its funding in the Company, and the
procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis other than referred above have
been used for long-term purposes by the company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans durit
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate comj



Xi.

ik,

xiii.

xiv,

XV,

xvi.

(b)

{c)

(a)

{a)

{b)

a)

(b}

{c)

(d)

The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable,

The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares / fully /
partly / optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x}(b} of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been
no material fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or
reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-iA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company {‘CIC’) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi}(c) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group {as per the
provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016} does not have
more than one CIC.



*vil.

xviii.

Xix.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. As informed, there have
been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the said outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, considering the support letter received from the
Holding Company and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 135,
Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company, accordingly, paragraph
3{xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The financial statements of subsidiaries incorporated in India are unaudited and have been
furnished to us by the management. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xxi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

Lauwair v 2naii

Partner

ICAl Membership No: 117348
UDIN: 2211734BAHWHMP5851

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 April 2022



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Standalone Financial Statements of UltraTech
Nathdwara Cement Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph “18.6" under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date}

Report on the Intermal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Opinion

1

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements of
UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited (“the Company”} as at 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india {“the Guidance Note”).

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
the Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing (“SA”), prescribed under section 143{10} of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements. Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements were established and maintained and
whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,



6.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financiat controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the $Standalone Financial Statements

7.

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls with reference to the S5tandalone Financial
Statements

8.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

L‘lduldlll v 2114

Partner

ICAI Membership No: 117348
UDIN: 22117348AHWHMP5851

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 April 2022





















ULTRATECH NATHDWARA CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2022

Nete L {A) Campany Dverview and Signiicant Accounting PobBcies -
Company Overview
LifraTech Mathdwara Cerent Limiled s a Public timited Compary incorporated in India having its n:g|str:n-d office af Koboata, lndna. The Compary is engaged in the
manuwacluring and selling of Cement and Cemnert related products.

The pama of the Compamy has ben changed to 'UlraTech Nathdwara Cement Lirmiled' {UNCL) from ‘Bingni Cement Limied® w.e.l. 13ih December, 2018,

SIGNIFLCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a}

by

c)

{d}

Statement of Complience:

Thete financial stalements (hereinatter referred to as “financkl satements ™} are praganed In accordance with the Indian Accouming Standards [“Ind A5%) a5 per
the Companies {Indian Accourting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified vnder Sectien 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (Cthe Ac) aned amendrments thereto as applicatle,
The financhal statemems were suthorised for issue by the Board of Binectors of the Comparry at their meeting hald on April 26, 2022,

Basis of P, jan and pr
Bagiz of Preparation

Tre financia! statements have been prepared an @ historical cost basis, extept kor the followlng aasets and lisbilibes:

{1) Derlvarive Flnanclal instrumems measured at Falr value

{ti} Certain financial assels and Iabilites measured at falr value (rafer accourting policy regarding financial instrumants)
{iii) Assats held for disposal — measured 3t the lower of its camying amount and fair value kess costs 1o safl

{iv} Employee’s Defined Benafit Plan a5 per actuarlal valustion

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sel' an asset or paid Lo trznsker a liahifity in an arderly transaction, betwaen market particpants o the
measuremant dabe urdar currert markat condilons, regartiless of whether thet price 1s directly observable or estimated using anather valuglicn technique, Tn
detemining the Rair value of an asset or a lizkility, the Company takes Into account the chacactaristics of the assel or tability if market participams would take
thase charactertehics Into accaunt when pricing the aseet or [fability at the measurement data.

Functional sng Presentation Currgney

{i} The financlal wtatements are prasented in Indian Rupeas, which is the Munconal currency of the Company and the currency of the primary econsmic
emviranment in which the Company operatos.

{ii} Figures less than ¥ 50,000 have been shown at aclual, wherever statutorily required te be disclosed, all other figures have been rounded off to the nearest %
in crores, unless otherwisa stated.

Classification af Adgets and Liabifties inte Current/Men-Curment
The Company hes ascertained its operating cyrle as belve months for the purpose of Currert § Non-Currant classification of s Aasers and tizbilites,

For the purpese of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as ourrent i

(i} Itis emperted to be rezlised, o is Intended to be sold o consumed, in the normal aperating cycke; or

(1) It is held primarily for the purppss of trading; or

{1if) 1t is ewpeced b reafise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(v} The &cent [s & cash or cash eguivalent undess it is restricted from being exchanged cr vsed to setde a labilty for &t least bwefve months after the reporting
period,

All mher assalts ara classiizd s non-cuirent.

Similarty. a llabliity |s clessified as current i:

(i] It is expecled to be setiled in e normal operating cyehe; o

{iit Jt i held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

{f&) [t is due to be sertied within taehve months after the reporting period; or

{Iv¥] The Company docs not have an unconditional right to defer the setlement of the Habllioe for at least twelv? memths ater the repoding periad. Terms of a
fiability that could result in ks settlement by the issue of equity instruments =t the option of e courterparty does not affect this classification.

Alt other liabilities are classified 38 non-current.

Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE}:

The inkial cost of FRE comprises ke purchase price, inchoding impor duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and amy direcly auributable costs of bringg s
aspet to worklng condition and kocation for iLs intended use, including relevant bommowing cosis and any expecicd costs of dae issloning, PPE are carried at cost
less accumulared depreriation and accemudated impaiment loss |, if #ny,

Subsequent cosis are includet in the asset’s camying amourl of recognized as & Eeparse asset, 25 pppropriate, only when it is prebable that fumure econamic
benefils associated with the Itam will Mow Lo the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mainlenance cost are charged
Lo Lhe Slatement of Profit and Logr during the periad in which texy were Incurred.

If sigrificant paris af an llem of PPE have different useful lives, then they 2re accounted for as g2parale tems (major tomponents) of PPE.

Materia| iters such as spare parts, slancd-by equiprment and service equipment are dassified as PPE when they meet the definitien of PPE as spexdlfied in 1nd AS 16
— Property, Plarm and Equipment.

Any gain or lnss on disposal of an iem of propenty, plant and equipmeant s recogiieed In the Satement of Profit and Loss,

Expenditure duyring period :

Expend|tures Income during construction period {including financing cost related to barrowed Funds for consiruction o acouisition of qualifying FFE) is indfued
under Capitat Work-in-Progress and the same is alloczted 1o the respactive FPE on the comelellsn o their consleuction, Advances given towards acquisibion or
constructon of PPE autstanding at each reportiag date are disclosed s Capitaf Advances under "Other mon-current Assels”







m

$h

(k)

m

{m)

{n]

Invenmries;

Imventories are va ded a5 follbws:

(i) Raw materiais, hpel, sinres h spzre parts and packing materials

Valued al iower of cosl ar 4 net realison’e value (NRY), However, these jbems are considared o be realisable &t cost, ¥ the Anished products, inwhich they will be
used, are expected to be sokd at or abowe ¢ost. Cost s determined on weighird aversqe besis which includes expenditure incurmed fur aequiring wventories e
purchage price, roport dites Bres fnet of taa oredith anid ather cos™ oumed in bonging the iwentories I Meir prestnt IBcetion end condltian,

{1} Work-in- prograss (WiP] and finlshed gowds:
Yalued at lower of cost and WRY. Cost of Frished goods and WAP includes cont of raw mmkerals, cosl of conversion and other cosrs incurmed In bringing the
inventorfes bo thad prejent [poatlen and condition, Codd of nventories 15 Camputed o wergtied average beste,

(Fll) Waske [ Scrap:

Waste / Serap inventory e valoed al My,

et realeable valuz is the estimated seifing pree In e ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completian and the esmimated cosis necessary 5
maxe the sale.

Rorrowing Casty:

General and @pedlfic boriewing costs Lhal are attribuable to ne smulsiden, construsrlsn of preduction of & quelifying 254t are capitalised as pat of Lhe cos of
zuch assct Hil swch ume the sued 15 ready for its intended use and baowowing costs are belng incurred. A quatifying asset 15 an ascet that neressarlly taies a
subsLantial perind of Uime to gat feady for it miended waz, Al other boreving cosls & recoaniess a5 an EXpense in e perod in which Bhely are ncuned.

Bomoming cost inchudes Weresl expense, amortizétan of discoonls, hedge related cost incurred in comeckion wilih foreign currency bormowings, anclllary costs
incJdrred in connection with borrgenng of hmds and excharge differepce arsing from Aerejan currency borrowings to the exbent they are regarded as an adjustmen
o the nierest cost

Provisions, Contingant Liabilities aad Contingant Assets:

Predsions are reoagnised when the Company has @ present obligaton (egal o congiructive] as 3 result of 2 past evend and it = pobable thet an outow of
resolrees, that canbe refiably etimated, will he requirad te sstike such a8 abligation.

I the eifect of the time valug of mangy i material, provisimos are determined by dlicounting the evgected fTwe cad) Flows & net mesent value using 2n
appropriele pee-tax disorant rate that 1efeds current market assessments of the Hme vane of money and, where appropiale, Lthe risks specihs to the labiity.
Uinwinding «f t# dlscount is recognised n the Statement; of Profit and Loss as 3 inance cost. Provisions are reviewed at exh repoling date and see adjusted to
reflect the currens best estimale.

A present abligation thet arises from past events where L5 Skher not probabike hat 20 cutflaw of rescusces will Be required Lo sedie or a robebie estimale of the
amaunt canndt k¢ made, i distlosed s 3 contingent labtlicy, Contngent llabéles are al i dischsed when therg G o passible ebligation ansing from past events,
the existEnce of which will be confirmed only by the arcumence of mon-ocouremoe of o2 oF mor uncenain Abure esacls iet whally within the conlrol of the
Commany,

Claims agairst the Company where the possibiity of any oulfow of resourees in settiement is remate, are net discksed as conbrgent fizbilibes.

Contlngeant s are not recegnised or distbosed in fingncial slebements since this may result in the mmosgnition of income that may never be raalized, Hawever,
when the resliation of imcoma s vicuslly c2rtain, then e relaled aset is not 2 conbingent asset and 15 recagalsed.

Hines Reatoration Provision:

An cblicgnon fo1 testoreeizn, rehabliation and eriranmental cosls arises when environmantzl distuance is cavsed by the develapment or onaaing eetraclion
from mipes. Coste arising fom restorehon at closure of the rures and olhar site preparation work are provided for based on then Sscouned nep presemt vale,
with a correspanding amouwt being capitalised at the st of each projed. The amourl provided far & recognised, a5 spon as the ablqation &2 inowr such cosks
arises, These cost e charged 1o the Statement of Prafit and Loss aver the Jife af the operation through the depreciation of the asset ard the unwinding of the
discount o6 the provision. The Cost are reviewea pericdically snd are adiusted to reflect knovin develapments whech may have an impact o the comt o life of
operadons, The cos: of B miated asset 13 aciusted for changes m the provision duc to facters such as wpdaled cost nstimates, nea disiurbande and revruomnd th
ditcount rales. The adjusted tast of the assel is deprecraled prospediively aver e lves of Lhe sssebs © whitk they relate, The unwindmg of the disccont 1S shiosn
as a fmance cost in the Statemer t af Profit and Luss.

Revenue Recognition:

(i} Revenue from Conracts RO Customers

+ Revenue 1» recogized on the basi¢ of approved tontracks regarding the tranafer of gquods or services to a cusiomer for an amount thm reflects the consideratign
(o which the entity axgecty to be entitled In exchange for Ihose goads o senviges, Company |s havng offtak® aomermom WM the helding company o Yeko he
matenal on &x works bats accordngly revene has been rétognosed an ex works Lasis,

- Revenue is measuned at B R value Of consideranng received of receivable Lang Inlp aceautm the amount of dlscolnds, incertivaes, wolume rebates, cubgoing
EXEs On saies. Ay amounts receivabie from the custumer are retognived as revenye atter Lhe control over the gands sold are iransfencd W the customer which
is generally 09 dispatch of yoods.

{il} Dvidens (ncome |8 accaunted for when the right m raceive the income is establshed.

(it} laterest income IS recognhleed using the Effactive IVMEREST Methon,

Lease;

The Company sasesses wheller 8 Conliact CONMRINs 3 &dse, at the seeption of the conlran A contract &, o containg, a lease if e wontract convegs the Nt w
comm! tha use of an identfied ase for & pernd of Tme i exEnge for cansideration. To assees whether 4 conlEct corvews the righ to centrol e use of an
ienkified 245et, the Company assesses whether

{1} the comract invohees the use of Wentified asset;

{iL} the Compaw has substanually &l of the economic benefits from te use of the asset thioogh the period of lease and;

iy the Campar has the rpht i direct the use af the aceel,

A a leasme

The Campanwy rocoghizes a right-obuse asset ("ROU and a lease lability at the Mase commencement date, The ROU is Infially measured at cost, wmich
comarises the wital amourt of the leage jahilfty acucled for any lease payments made at or hefure e commencement date, plus ary Initial girers costs incuired
and an egimate of cods to danante and remove the wnderlying asset or 1 restore the underlying asset or e slbe on which it = kcated, less any lease
incentives recejvad,

Lartain joase atranggments ndude e option o ex@nd of Lerminate e gace before te end of e jease term The nght-o7-use aseels and beasn [inbil ties
include these optigns when it is reasonably certain that the aption will be cxercised.

The AOU f5 subsenuenitly depreciabed osing the straight-wne methpd fam the qommencernan date to the end of the lease wrm,

The lease llzblity is mitially meassrmd 2t the presert value of the kease pawments that are not paid at the commeacement dsta, discountod using the irlerest rae
implicit In the lease or, if that ra'e sannot be readity delerrined, and caxmpany's incementsl bonuwing rate. Getwrally, the Company Uses it mcremenigl
Borrowing rate as e Siscount rale.

Lexe payments ncluded m 102 measuremow of the sage [abity tomprices leed paymens, chuding ir-sutdtance fed paymests, amounts expected to be
payabie under & resdual value guargntas and the exerdse price under 3 purchase oplion that the Companly is reasonably cerlain 1o exerclse, kase payments i an
optienal renewal perod (f Lhe Company is reasonatity certzin b evendse an extension ppon,

The lease liabilty [s measured ot amorlised coSt wing the eNedive interest mathod, awept thuse which & payable gther than fyncional curency which 15
reasuced at Tar value throwgh FRL It 15 remeasured when thera s 2 change m Ature lease p2yments siking from a change in an index or rate, |f there Is 2
change in the company’s it of the ameun; expacied (o be payvabue under & resdual value guarantee, or if company changes | asseaament of whether & will
exrrrise 3 purchase, eaension or wmingtion aptan.



Moy

[4:3]

When e lease Jlabilky Fs remeasured in this way, & corresponding adiistment is made ta the carrying amount of the ROU, o |s récorded in Stalemnent o Profit ar
Legs if the carrying amaunt of the ROU has been reduced ta zero.

Lrase Liabilitics have been preserded in ‘Finangal Liabilitles” and the ROV have been presented separately in the Balance Sheet, Lease payments have been
classified as Anancing activities in the Stalement of Cash Flows,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value asscly
The Camparry has elected not bo recognise ROU and lease labdlides for
- shart term leases that hawe a |eaze term of 12 months or keser angd
- Leases of kow value assels,
The Campary revognises the lease paymerts associaled with these |eases as 2n expensa over the lease term.
LIEY - thg
Lease Incorne from operating keases where the Company 15 8 ledsar is recogrised In fhcome gver e |ease berm. The respective kased assets are inclxied |n the
balance sieet based on their natwre,

Employee benefits:

Gratuity

The gratuity, a deflned beneflt plan, payable to the emplayees Is based on the Emgloyees’ service and last drawn satery at the tme of the leaving of the services
of the Company and s In accordence with the Rules of the Company for payment of Gretuity. Liablity with reqards o gratwity plan §s determined wsing the
projecled unit credit melfod, with attuarlal valuations being camiel cul by a qualified independent acluary ab the end of each annual reporting porind, Re-
measurement, comprising actuaral gains and Josses, the eflecl of the chanoes ta the asset ceiling (if applicablke) and the return on plan assets {exciuding net
interest), is reflected immediately in the Balznoe Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT) In the perlod In which they accur.
Re-measurerment recognised in OCT Is refleckad immediately in retained eamings and wii not be reclassified to Statement, of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is
recognised in the Statement of Prefit and Loss in the peripd of 2 plan amendment. Tnterest is caloulated by applying the discount rate af the beglnnirng of the
peried o the niet defined benefll fablity or assel and |s recognised in the Statement of Frofit and Loss. Definad benafil cosls are categorised as hllows:

[1) service cost (including cusrant service cast, past service vast, a3 well as gaine and losses on cortailmerts and settements);

[ii] net Interest expense or income; and

(ili) e-measurement

The present value of the defined hensfit plan liability i coiculated using # distount reate which is determined by reference to market yields at tie end of the
reparting period on government bonds.

The defined benefit chligation recognised in the Balaroe Sheet represents the actual deticit or surplus in Ye Company’s defined beneft plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calcufation is imied to the present value of any econoniic benefies available in the form of refunds from the plans or redoctions in future comtributions to
the plans.

Pravident Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitied to receive berefits in sespect of providenl fund, which is a defined benefit plan, for which both the employess
and the Campany Make monbnly contribimians at a specified percentage of the towvered employess’ salary.

Superannuation

Certzin employees of the Company are eligible for participation in deflined conlribution ptans such superannuation and natonal pension fund. Contnbutions
towartls thigse funds are rercgrized as an expense perfedically based on the contribution by the Company, since Company has no further obligation bepond its
perlodie contributian.

Other employee henefis

A fiability is recognised for benefils accruing ke employees in respedt of wages and salzries, annual kave and sick leawe in the period the related service is
remdered, .

Liabilles recognised 1n respect af short-terr: employes benatits are measured at the undismounted amount of the benefils expecies 1o be pad in exchenas for the
refrted service,

Lighilities recognised in respect of okther bng-temm employee benafits are measured vslng the projectend unit credit method by a qual@ied independent achtary at
the ene of each annual reporting meriod, at the presenl value of the estimalied fubere cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in resped of serices
privided by employess up B the repasting date. Remeasurernent gains / losses are recognised in the Satement of Profit and Loss in the peried in which they
arize,

Income Taxes:

Income Tax expenses comprise curtent tax and deferred by charge or credit,

Current Tax is measured on the basls of estimated taxable intome for the cumeni accounting period in accandance wilh the applicable t@x rakes and the provisions
of the Income-tax ACT, 1991 and other applicable tax ksws.

Deferred tax is recognisad, on all wmpoary differances at the reperting date between the B base of assgts and Babilitdes and their camying amounls for financial
reporting purposes, Deferred Wy 2ssels and liabilities are measured ot the tax mtes that are expechked to be applied o the temporary differences. when they
reverss, basad on the laws thal have been enacled of subslanlively emacted ak the reporting dame, Tak relating to ilems recognised directy In equity ar QCT is
recognised in equity r OCI and not In the Statement of Profit and Loss, MAT Credite ace in the form of unused e credits that are canied forward by the Company
for 2 spedified period of tme, hence it % grouped with Deferred Tax Asset, MAT is recoqnised as an asset only when anc o the axlent thera s convinelg evidence
that the Compay will pay normal income tx during the specified period,

Cuerant ay assems and current tax llabllites are ofiset when theve 15 a legally enforcesble right fo et off the recognised ameuns and bhare is an intention to sebe
the asset and the liability on a net hesis, Deferred tax axests and defemed tax lizbilities are offeet wben there is 2 legally enforceabie right b set off cument tax
asgets against current @x fiabilities; and the deferred tax stz and the deferred tox Nabllities relate to income tawes tevied by the same texalion authority.

& deferred fax asset Is recognised to the extent that It is probable thet furure wxeble profits will be sveilable againsl which e temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred Lax assets are reviewed at sach raporting date and are recoghised [/ reduced o the extent Lhat it is prebable § o bonger probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realised, )

The Government of Trdia, on September 240, 2012, vide the Taxation Laws [Amendment) Crdinance 2012, inserted a new Sedtion 115884 in Lhe Incomea Tax Adl,
1961, which previdas an oplion o the Company fur paving Income Tax at redued rates as per the provisiongfconditions defined in the said section, The Company
has deciled 1o move ko kower tox rate from FY 2320-21 cnwands under secticn 115 BAA.
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Earnings Per Share:

Baslc Earings Per Share ["EFST) is computed by dividing the et profit J {lossh sfler wax for the wear atbibytobie Lo e eguity shareholders by the walghted
average number of aquity shares culstanding duiing e pear.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, nel profit § (loss} after wx for the year aktributable to the equity shareholders i divided by the weighled
#verage number of equity shares which coud hiave been issued an the convarsion of all dilutive patertial equity sheres to satlsfy the exercise of the share options
by the emolovees.

Forelgn Currency transactions:

Transactions in currencies ather than Lhe Company’s functions! currercy {le. Faselgn currenties) are recognised at the mtes of exchange arevailing 2t the dates of
the transactions. AL the end of each reporting period, monetry ItEms denominatey in formign currencies are translated at the ratos prevaiing at that date. Noa-
menetary items carried at fair vahuz that are denominated in foreign currendies are Lranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
detenrinad. Mon-monstary items that are measured in barms of Ristodcal cost In 3 Foreign currency are ransiated using the exchange rate as ab the date of Initiad
lransactions,

Exzhange differences on monelary items are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise ExCept for:

+ exchange diferences on forefan currency bomowings relating Lo assets ungder construeren for fubure produclive use, which are inciuded In the cost of these
asses when they are reganded as an adjustmienl te inkerest cocts an those fnelgr cumency borrawings;

in :

The Compamy’s investrment; in its subsidiaies are carried ab cosl net of accumulated Impament, i any

On disposal of Bre Inyestment, the difference beteeen the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amount Is charged or credited W Lhe Stalement of Prodit and
Loss,

Financial Instrumenta:

Financial assets and financial lisbllities sre recognised when a Company becomes a party tn the comtracal provislons of the instruments.

Inltlal Recognition: .

Financlal 2asets and financial liskilities are infially measured at fair value, Transaction custs that are direclly attributable to the acquisition of issue of Fadncial
asters and firancial fiabilices {other than financial assels and fnancial ablites at fir value through profit or Ioss and ancillary gosts related (o borrowings) are
added 1o o deducted from the lair value of Lhe financial assets or finapcial liabiRies, as appiapriate, on initial 1ecogrition. Transaction ensts directly Staibutahis Lo
the acgLiation of financal asses or financial liahilities at fair value through profit or o5t are chargad te the Statement of Prafit 2nd Loss over the benure of the
financial agsets or financial liabliites.

Claxyificatton and fubsequent Measurcment: Financial Assets
The Company classifies francial assets as cubgequently measurad a1 amortises cosl, Fair Yalue through Other Comprehensive Incame [FY0C7) o Fair value
through Prof o Loss ("FYTPL") on the basis of fellowing:

(i} b entlty’s business model for managing ke financial assets and

(inthe comrectual cash flow characteristics of the financial assel,

Ambriised Ciowt:

A financial assex shall be classified and measured st amorlsed cost if both of the Foliowing conditions are met:
<1} the financial assef Is held within & business moda! whoge ohjective 1s ko hold financial assets In crder to collect conmactual cash Aows and

(i) tha contractual erms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the prircipai ameyunt
autstarding.
In case of Mancizl assels classified and mersured at amorised cost, any interasl Income, foretgn exchange dains or losses and impaitment are recognised in the
Statepant sf Profik and Loss,

Fair valug through OO
A financlal asset ghall be classified and Treasured at fair valuc through GCT if both of the followdng cenditions are et

(i} the financial asset is held within & business model whase ohjective is achieved by bath colecting contraclisl cash fows and selling financial assets and

(il) the rontraciual tems of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Inte-gst an the princhpal amaunt
outstanding,

Fair ¥alue through Profit or Loss:
A finandial zsset shall be damsiflzd and measured at fair value through poofit or koss urdess it is reasured al amortised cost ar at fBir value twouah OCLL

All recogrised fimandal assets are subsequently measured in their emirety st efther amorised cast or fair value, depending on the classificatlar of the fingncial
assets,

For fnancial assels at FYTPL, net gaing or lsses, including any interest or dividend incame, are recogntsed in the Slalement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subseq ] Financhl Habiltes

Financia) lighillties are classified as either financlal liabilities a FYTPL or ether Arancial iakilitles',

Financial Liabflities at F¥TPL:

Finandal liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabifiey is held for trading o is 3 derivalive (excep! for effective hedge) or are designated upon

Inkial recoquition as FYTPL
Gains or Losses, inclueding any intcrest expense on liabilities held far trading are recognised in the Statermem of Profit and Lass.

Other Financial Liabilitdes:
Otzer Financial liabilities finduding barravings and trade and olher payables) are subsequently measured 2t amormsed cosr using the effective inlerest methad.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimabe’ future cash payments (frcluding all fees and points paid or raceiver that farm an inlegral
part of the effactive interest rate, warsacton msts and other premiums of discolnts) through the expected fife of the fimancial labllity, or {wherz appropriae} a
shrer perod, Lo the amertsed cost an initizl recognition.

[rerest expense (hasex n the effective interest melhod), foreign exchange gains and losses, and any gain or doss on derecogrition is recognised in the
Skatement of Profit and Loss,

Impairment of financial assats:

Experted aedit kosas are reccanized for all financial assels subsequent Lo initial recognition ather Lhan financigls assets in FYTFL category. For financial assets
otfer than trade receivables, o5 per Ind AS 109, the Company reconises 12 month expected credic Josses for ali originated of acrylired financial assets IF at the
reporiing dae the erodit risk of the financlal asset has 1ot Increased signifcantly since s nitial recoonition, The expecled credit ksses are measured as Belimea
expected credit osses il U credil risk on pancisl 2sset increases stynificantly since e initial recogrition.

The Companys rade recehables do not contain slgnificant financing compenent and as per simplfied appruacy, loss allowances on trade receivables are
measured Lsing provislon malnix 2 an amount equal to Ife Yime expected losses i, expected cash shortall.

The impairmenl losses and revarszls are recagnised In Statement of Pradit and Loss.
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Derecogrition of financial assets and financial Fabilities:

The Company derecoanises a finandizl astet when the contraciual rights W Ghe cash Tows rom Lhe asset expirz, or when it trangiers the financial assct and
subslantially &ll the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to anothes party. If the Company neither Lensiers nor retains subslantially all the risks and

riards of hip and cont to eentro] the trarsferred asset, the Company recognises it retsingd interest In the asset and an 2ssodiated liabllly for
amounits {t may have to pay. If the Company retains substantally afl the risks and rewards of ownership of 3 ransferrad financial apsat, the Compary connues to
recogrise \he financial asset and alse recoanises an associated Labilly for amourds it has to foy.

On derecognition of 2 financia! assel, the diferamce between the agset’s carnding amount and {he sum of the consideration received and roceivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been regognised in OCT and aocumulated in equily is recognisad in the Smtement of Profit and Loss.

The Company de-recognises financial fabilities when and anby when, te Compamy's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expingd, The diference batwesn
the camying amount of Lhe financal liabjlity de-récognied and the consideration paid end peyable is recognised in the Statemeant of Profit and Loss,

Financial Guarantee Comtract Uablites
Finaadal Guarantee Comtract Llabilities are disclosed in finangial statements in accordance with Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Lizbiltles and Contingent

Aggots,

Cash and cash equivalbenis:
Cash and {ash equivalepls In e Balance Sheet comprise cash al bank and n hand and shart-term doposits wikh banks thak are readily convertible inlo cash which
are subjent to insigrificant dsk of changes In valve and are hedd for the purpose of reseting shot-term cash commiments,

Financlal Habllitles and equity Instrumenta:

(i) Classiication a5 debt or equity

Debt and equity instrumenls issued by the Company are clagsiled as ather financial liabiliies or as equity in accordance with the substance of the comrectusl
anangenzn's and the definitions of a finangial liakility 2nd an eguily instrurrent,

I} Equity invtrumenkts

An equity instrument is amy contracl hat evddences a resldual imberest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of it ifabilities. Equity instrzmenls issued by a
Comparty are recognieed ot the proceeds received.

Derivative financizl instrusmeanks:

The Company enters into derivative finandal | vir, ferelgn exchange farward contracts fo mandge its exposuie o Mnteresl rate, foreign exchange rete
rskx and commodity prices. The Company does mol hold derivative financial instruments for seeaufative purpeses.

Dervatives are inttiafly recognised at fair value at te date the derivative conlracts are enlered Inlo and are subsequently rermeasurad to thai: Fair vake at the end
of gach repardng peried. The resulting gain or loss ks recagnised i prafit o loss inmediately excluding derivatives deslgrated as cash Mow hedge,

Segment Reporting: Identification of Segments:

An operating segmant is a compenent of the Compamy that engages in business acrivities from whith it may eam revenues and incin expenses, whose operating
resufts are regulary reviewed by Lhe cempany's Chiel Operaiing Decision Maker ["CODM™ to make decisions For which discrete financlal information s availabls,
Based on the maragement approach as defined in Ind RS 108, the CODM evakuztes Lhe Company's performance ang allocates resources based on an analysis of
vanous performance indicators by businass segments and peograshic segments.

Cash Fow statement

Cash Thows are rigr L) using the indirecl method, whereby proft before fx &5 pdjusted for the effects of ransactions of non-Cash newre and any deferrsls ar
actruaks of past or futuee cash receipts or payments. The cash Aows from eerating, investing and financing activities of the Company are sefregated based on
the avallable information,
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Critical accounting judgements and ey spurees of eptimation uncertainkby:

The preparadon of the Company’s financlal staternents requires managament o make judgements, estimates and assumprions thar afert the reparmed amount of
reyenues, expenges, assets and [iabilties, and the accompamying disclosures, ard the disclesure of contingent liabilities, Unceriainty aboul these assumptions ard
estimates coUkl resuit in outcomes that require a material agjustment 1 Lhe carrying amount of assets or labllities affected m frture periods.

Crivical fudnmeants in applying accounting policies: -
In the process of applying the Company’s acoounting pelicies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the
amaounls recognised in the finzncial slalements,

Classification of Lease Ind AS L16:

The Company evalugtes if an amangement qualifies Lo be a tease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, Identification of a |eare requires shgnificont judgment,
The Company uses significant judgement In ariving at the applicable discount rate, The Company €etermings the lease term 25 the non-canecllakle perind of a
lease, together with bath periods covered by an optlon to estend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and perlods covered by an
opiion B terminate Lhe [sase if the Company Is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Campany is reasenably cerlain bo exercise
an optien o edend a Izase, or not ko exercise an option to teminate 4 lease, # consigders 2l relevant facts and circumstances that creale &n ecanomic incentive
for the Company to exercise the opton (o extend the lease, or not ko exercise the option t terminate the lease, The discourt rate is generally based on the
incremental barawing rate specfic to the lease belng evaluated or for a group of leases with similar characterlscs.

Key assumptions:

The wy gasumptions conceming the flure and other key sources of cetimatien uncerlalnty at the reporting date, that have a significant ridk of causing a materlal
adjustment Lo the carrying amaunts of assels 2nd liabilities within he next finandal year, are described bedow. The Company based its assumpdons and estimates
on patameters available when the financial satements were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about fArture devekopments, however, may change
tue o market changes or dreumatances arising that are beyond the oorrol of the Company. Such changes are reflected |n the assumplions when they oceur.

(i} Usefu] Lives of Proparty, Plant & Equipment and Intanglble Ascets:

The Company uses its echnical eaperUse along with histarical and industry trends For determining Thie econoimic life of an asserfcomnponait of an aaset The useful
Invs are reviewed by management pericdically and revised, f appeopriate. In case of & rewision, the unamotised depreciabla amount is changed ower the
remzining useful life of the assels. In case of certain mining righis the amorisation is based on the extracied quantity te the W@l mineral resarve,

{il} Impairment of Assels:
The Company reviews its carrping value of astete annually where thene s an Indication of Impafrraent by estimating the futere sconomic benefits from asing such
assts If the regoveralle amount is less than i camying amount, the impairment Ipss is accounted for,

{Ili} Recngniion ond t of dedarred tay assets and Rablftes:

Deferred tax assety and liabllites are recognised for deductible temporery dMferences and unused @x lasses for which there is probability of wilisation against the
fuiure texable profit, The Company uses judgement to determine the amount of defermd tax liability / asset that can be recognised, besed upsn the [kely Hming
and the level of future axable profits and usiness develaprents,

{) Income Taxes:

The Company calculates income G expense based an reported Income and esstimated axemprans [/ deducdon likely available tn the Company. The Company has
moved I mew tax regime (Secbon 115 Baa) from Fr 2020-21 onwards . The Company has applied the kower income tax rates on the deferred tax assets /
liabillfes to the extent these are expected m realised or settled In the flure when the Company may be subject to kwer Lox rabe based on the fubure financlals
prajectians.

{v} Fair value measurement of finandal Instrumenis:

Whep (he fair valses of financial assels and financial labillties recorded In the bafante sheet cannot be measured based en gquated prices in active mackels, tair
fair value is measured uging valuation echnigues inchuding the Ciscounted Cash How medel, The inputs b these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where bhis is nak feasihie, 2 degrec of jurg 1 is required in est hing fair values, Judgements Inchude considerations of inputs such as liquidly
risk, exexiit risk and valatility,

{vl) Deflned baneff plans;

Tha nost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of He gratulty obhigation are demsmined using acuarial valuations. An achuaral valuation
involves making various assumplions that may differ from actual devalopments in Lhe future. These include the determination of the discourtt rate, future satary
increases and mertality rates. Due to the complexities invalved in the vakerlon and its long-teym nature, a defined benefit abltgatfen is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. Al assumpticns sre reviewed at each reporiing dave.

(vii} Mines Restaration Obligation:

In derermining the fair value of the Mines Resloratfon O ion, ions and esti are made in refation o discount rates, the expected cost of mines
resstzration and the expectard timing of thaze costs,

(viit} Disposal Groups/assets keld for sale : .

The Company has ustd cemparable market muttiple approach th assess the fair value of the disposal greup,

Uneder the rmarket muliple approach, emerprse value of a company s determined by using multiples desived from valuamions of cormparable companies, as
rnanifested through stock marker valuations of listad companles considering Erzerprise Value! Pevenue snd Enterprise valug/ EBITDA mukiples based on thelr
markel price and |alest published financial information,

Appropriate adjustments are made {e.q. for debt and swrplus assets) to arrlve Al the equity value of Me disposal group.








































































Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of
UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated ind AS financial statements of UltraTech
Nathdwara Cement Limited {“the Holding Company” or “the Parent” or "the Company”} and its
subsidiaries {the parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”}, which comprise
the consolidated batance sheet as at 31 March 2022 and the consolidated statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (“the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and
financial information of such subsidiaries, as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in india, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at 31 March
2022, and its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {“SAs”} specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, in accordance with the Code of Ethicsissued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained along with the
consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in the “Other Matters” paragraph
below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements.



Emphasis of Matter

4.

We draw attention to Note 29 of the Consolidated Financial Staternents, which refers to the order
dated 31 August 2016 (penalty of Rs. 167.32 crores) of the Competition Commission of india {*CCI’)
against which the Company had filed appeal. Upon the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal
(“NCLAT") disallowing its appeal against the CCl order dated 31 August 2016, the Company has filed
an appeal before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, which has by its order dated 5 October 2018,
granted a stay against the NCLAT order. Consequently, the Company. has deposited an amount of
Rs.16.73 crores equivalent to 10% of the penalty of Rs.167.32 crores recorded as asset. The
Company, backed by legal opinions taken by Ultratech Cement Limited - Parent Company, believes
that it has a good case basis which no provision has been recognised in the books of account. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does
not include the Consolidated Financial 5tatements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Other
tnformation is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Qur opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenits, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial 5tatements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based
on the work done / audit report of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance,

Management’s responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

8,

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these Consolidated Financial Statements, that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of
affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {“Ind AS”} specified under section 133
of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Staterments that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.



10.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

11.

12,

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12.1 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

12.2 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(j) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

12.3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

124 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.



13.

14,

15,

12.5 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12.6 Obtain sufficientappropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

16. We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of five subsidiaries, whose financial

statements reflect total assets {before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. Nil Crore as at 31 March
2022, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments} of Rs. Nil and net cash flows (before
consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements / financial information have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and
our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.



17.

18,

We did not audit the financial statements of nine subsidiaries and, whose financial statements
reflect total assets {before consolidation adjustments} of Rs.67.13 Crore as at 31 March 2022, total
revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. Nil and net cash flows {before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by
the management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of
section 143(3) of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the matters reported in Para 16 & 17
above with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements / financial information certified by the management.

The comparative Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2021 included in these financial statements are management certified, which has been furnished to
us by the Management and has been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of the this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

19.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of audit reports
of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

19.1 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
krnowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements.

19.2 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

19.3 The conseclidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated
Financiai Statements.

19.4 In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

19.5 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2022, taken on record by the Beard of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India are disqualified
as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.



19.6

18.7

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Consotidated
Financial Statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company to its directors is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director by the Holding Company is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of
the Act.

20. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014 (Reporting is done only with reference to Holding
Company since financial statements of all the Subsidiaries incorporated in India are unaudited and
have been furnished to us by the management}, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

20.1.

The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31
March 2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, Refer Note 29 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

20.2. The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including

20.3.

20.4.

20.5.

derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

The management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Holding Company to or in any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company {“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that such representation contains any material
misstatement.

The management has represented that no funds have been received by the Holding Company
from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on
reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that such representation contains any material misstatement,



20.6. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no dividend was

declared and / or paid during the year and accordingly reporting on compliance of Section 123
of the Act will not be applicable for the Group.

For Khimji Kunverji &Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

vﬁ‘artner

ICAI Membership No: 117348
UDIN: 2211734BAHWHNI14885

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 April 2022



Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
UitraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Referred to in paragraph “19.6” under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Intemmal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).
{Reporting is done only with reference to Holding Company since financial statements of all the
Subsidiaries incorporated in India are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management)

Opinion

1.

tn conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of UltraTech Nathdwara
Cement Limited as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement
Limited {“the Holding Company™}, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal controls over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of such internal
controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the Guidance Note”).

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal
controls over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company internal financial controls with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing (“SA”}, prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.



Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statementsis a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, A company’s intemal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the consolidated Financial
Statements

1.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Daaictratinn Number: 105146W/W100621

R
Partner

ICAl Membership No: 117348
UDIN: 22117348AHWHNI4885

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 April 2022





















ULTRATECH NATHDWARA CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 1 [A) Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies
Company Overview
UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited {the Holding Company) is @ Public Limited Company incorporated in India having its registered office at Kolkata, India. The Holding
Company and its subsidiaries are engaged In the manufacturing and sale of Cement and Cement refated products. The Hotding Company and its subsidiarles together
referred as “the Company” or “the Group™.

The name of the Company has been changed to ‘UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited' {UNCL) from 'Binzni Cement Limited' w.e.f. 13th Decemnber, 2018,

SIGNEFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

fat

by

icy

(d)

Statement of Compliance:

Thesz consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred Lo as “inandal statements”) are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Staridards (“Ind
AS™) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standands) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and amendments thereto as
applicable, .

The financial statements were authorised for issue by tha Board of Rirectors of the Company at their meeting held on April 26, 2022,

Basis of Preparation and presentation
Basis of Praparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:

(i} Derivative Financial Instruments measured at fatr value

{il} Certain financial assets and liablities measured at fair value {nefer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)
{iil) Assets held for dispasal — measured at the lawer of its carrying amount and fair value fess costs to sell

{iv} Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation

{v} Assets and liabilities acquired under Business Combination measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald bo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market paricipants at the
measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly phservable or estimated using another valuation technique, In
determining the fair vaiue of an asset or a liabifily, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or Hability if market participants would take
those characteristics Into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

Eunctional and Presentation Currency

(i) The financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and the curmency of the primary economic
enviranment in which the Company operabes.

(if) Figures less than ¥ 50,000 have been shown at actual, wherever statutorily required to be disclosed, all other figures have been rounded off to the nearest 2
in crares, unless othenvise stated,

Classification of Assefs and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current
The Company has ascertained is operating tycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non-Current classification of its Assets and Liabllides.

Fer the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset s dlassified as current if

(i} It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in ke normal operating cycle; or

(i} It s hald primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(i} ¥ is expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv} The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle = liability for at least twelve menths after the reporting
period. .

#ll ather assets are classified as non-current.

Similzrly, a lizkility s classified as current if:

(i) It is expected ta be settled in the normal operating cycke; or

(ii} ¢ Is held primarily for the purpase of trading; or

(i} It is due to be setted within twelve months after the reperting period; ar

(i) The Compary does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabllity for at [east twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a
liability that could resuft in its settfement by the issue of equity inslruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this dassification.

All other liabilities are dassified as non-cumrent,

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPEL:
The Initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any direcdy attributable costs of bringing an
asset to working condition and location for its intended use, induding relevant borrowing costs and any expecied costs of decommissioning.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separete asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the iten will flow to the Company and the cost of the iem can be measured reliably. All cther repairs and maintenance cost are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in’ which they were incurred.

If significart parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (mzjor components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by eguipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when they mest the definition of PPE as specified In Ind AS
16 ~ Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gain aor loss cn disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment |s recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

PPE are staled at their cost of acquisitionfinstallation or construction net of accumulsted depredation, and impatrment losses, if any,

Expenditure during construction period:

Expenditure/ Income during construction peried (including financing cost related to borrowed fupds for construction or acqulisition of qualifying PPE} is included
under Capital York-in-Progress and the same is allocated to the respective PPE on the completion of thelr construction, Advances given towards acquisition or
monstruction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disciosed as Capital Advances under Other non-current Assers”






{h)

fit

)]

(k)

[§3]

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the camying amounts of non-financial assets to determine whether there is any Indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent aof the
impairment lass {if any). When it is not pessible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individua! asset, the Company estimates the recoverable smount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation ¢an be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual eash-generating units, or atherwlse they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reascnable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assels with indefinite usefid llves and intangible asset= not yet avallable for use are tested far impairment at least 2nnually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less casts of disposal and value in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flews are discounted to
thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cumrent market assessments of the Hme value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) Is estimated to be less than Its camying amount, the camylng amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An :mpairment foss is recognised immediately In Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an Impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of s
recoverabla amount, but so that the increased carrylng amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had ne impainment lass
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss i recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and
Lose.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued as follows:

{i} Raw materials, fuel, stores & spare parts and packing materials:

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value {NRY). However, these items are considerad to be realisable at cost, if the finished products, in which they wilf be
used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis which indudes expenditure incurred for acquiring inventorles like
purchase price, import duties, taxes {net of tax credit) and other costs incurred In bringing the inventories to their present location and condiion,

{ii) Work-in- progress {(WIP), finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run Inventories:
Yalued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw materials, cost of conversion and other wosls incurred in bringing the
Inventaries to thelr present location and condition. Cest of Inventories Is computed on weighted average basls,

(lii) Waste / Scrap:
Waste / Scrap Inventory is valued at NRV.

. Net realisable value Is the estimated selfing price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

Borrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing casts that are attributable to the aoquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of
such asset till such time tha asset is ready for its intended use and borrowing costs are being incurrad. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes s
substantial perlod of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs 2re recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Bormowing cost includes interest expense, amortization of discounts, hedge related cost incurred in connection with fereign currency borrowings, ancilary costs
incurred in canneclion with borrowing of funds and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the Interest cost.

Provisions, Contingent Liabiliies and Contingent Assets;

Pravislons sre recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources, that cen be rellatly estimated, will be required to settle such 2n obligation.

I¥ the effect of the time valug of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriata, the risks specific to the liabllity.
Unwinding of the diszount is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted o
reflect the current best estimate.

A pressnt obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable astimate of the
amaunt cannot be made, Is distlosad as a cantingent liabiity. Contingent lizbilides are also disclosed when there Is a possible abligatlon arising from past events,
the exlstence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company,

Claims against the Company where the passibility of any cutflow of resournces In settlement is remote, are not disclesed as comtingent liabilities.

Contingent assats are not recognised or disclosed in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised, However,
when the realisation of lncome is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recagnised.

Mines Restoration Provislon:

An obligation for resturation, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental disturbance Is caused by the development or ongeing extraction
from mines. Caosts arising from restoration at closure of the mines and other site preparation work are provided for based on their discounted net present value,
with @ corresponding amount being capitalised at the start of each projed. The amount provided for is recognised, as soon as the pbligation to incur such costs
arises. These costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the Iife of the aperation through the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the
disoount on the provision, The cost are reviewed periodically and are adjusted to reflect known developments which may have an Impact on the cost or life of

" operations. The cost of the related assel is adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors such as updated cost estimates, new disturbance and revisions to

discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depredated prospedtively over the Jves of the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of the distount is
shown as a finange cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



{m}

{n)

{o}

Revenue Recognition:
{i} Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(a) Reyenue is recognized on the basis of approvad contracts regarding the fransfer of goods or services ko & customar for an amount that reflects the
consideraticn to which the entity expecis to be entided in exchange for thase gcods or services. Company is having offtake agreement with the holding company
o take the material on ex works basls accordingly revenue has been recognised on ex works basis.

{b) Ravenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or recelvable taking into account the zmourt of discounts, incentives, volume rebstes,
cutgoing taxes on sales. Any amounts receivable from the cuslomer are recegnised as revenue after the control over the goods sold are transferred to the
customer which is generally on dispatch of goods.

{i) Dividend jncome is accounted far when the right to receive the income is estadlished,

{lIiy Interest income is recognised using the Effective Interest Method.

Leasa:

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, 2t the inception of the contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the cantract conveys the right to
control the use of an identifled asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To #ssess whether a contract conveys the right to contral the use of an
idenlified asset, the Company assesses whether

{i) the contract invoives the use of identified asset;

{ii} the Company has subsiantially all of the ecanomic benefits from the use of the asset through the pericd of lease and;

{iity the Company has the right ko direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU“Y and a lcase liability at the lease commencement date. The ROU is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial smount of the lease (iability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct casts incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remcve the underlying asset or to restore the underkying asset or the sire on which it is focated, less any lease
incentives received.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease befare the end of the lease term. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilties
include these options when it Is reasonablv certain that the option will be exercised.

The ROU s subsequently gepreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date o the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rete cannot be readily determined, and companys inoremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental
borrawing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to bo
payable under a residual value guarantee and the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reascnably certain to exercise, lease payments in
an cptional renewal period ff the Company is reasanably certain bo exercdise an extension option.

The lease liability |s subsaguently measured at amortised cost 1sing the effective interest method, except those which are payable other than functiorai currency
which Is measured at fair value through profit or lass. 1t is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate,
if there is & change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residuat value guarantee, or if company changes s assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the iease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made 1o the carrying amount, of the ROU, or is recorded in Statement of Profit
or Loss if the camying amount of the ROU has been reduced to zero.

Lesse Uabllitkes have been presented in *Financial Liabilities’ and the ROV have been presemted separately in the Balance Sheet. Lease payments have heen
classified as financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows.

Short-term leages and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for
- short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or lower and
- Leases of low value assats.
The Company recoghises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over Lhe lease term. The refated cash flows are classified as Operating
activities in the Statement of Cash Flows.
As a les=or
Lease Income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income over the lease term. The respective leased 2ssets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.

Empioyee benefits:

Gratuhy

The gratuity, a defined benefit plan, payable {o the employees is based on the Employees' service and last drawn saiary at the time of the leaving of the services
of the Company and is in accordance with the Rules of the Company for payment of Gratulty, Liability with regards to gratuity plan is dotermined using the
projected unit credit method, with achuarial valuations being camied out by a qualified independent actuary at the end of gach annual reporting period. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the chanses © the asset ceiling {If applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding cet
imterest), is reflected immedia®ely in the Balaace Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in Other Camprehenshive Income (OCI) in the periad 'n which they
occur. Re-maasurement recognised in OCT is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service
onst is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass in the period of a plan amencment. Interest is calculated by applying the discourt rate at the beginning of
the perlad to the net defined benefit Bability or asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Defined benefit costs are categorised as Follows:

{i} service cost (including current service cost, past senvice cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailmerits and settlements};

{ii) net interest expense or income; and

{ifire-measurement

The present value of the defined benefit plan hiabiiity is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference o market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds. .

The defined benefi: cbligation recognised in the Balange Sheet represents the actus? deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benafit plans, Any surplus
resulting fram this calculation is [Imited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form af refunds from the plans or reductions in future
comributions ko the plans.



(r}

(q)

{r)

{5}

Provident Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled ta receive benefits in respect of provident fund, which is a defined benefil plan, for which both the employees
and tha Company make manthly contributicns at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary,

Superannuation

Certain employees of the Company are elicible for participation in defined contribution plans such superannuation and national pension fund. Contributions
towards these funds are recognized as an expense periodically based on the contribution by the Company, since Company has no further obligation beyond its
periodic contribution.

Other employee beneflts

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees In respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period he related service is
rendered,

Liabiltties recognised in respect of shortterm employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be pald In exchange for
the related service.

Liabilities recognised In raspect of ather long-term empioyee benefits are measured using the projected unit credit method by e qualified independent actuary at
the end of each annual reporting period, at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expeded to be made by the Company in respedt of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date, Remeasurement gains / losses are regnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss In the period in which they
arise.

Income Taxes:

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable Income for the current sccounting period in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions
of the Income-tax Act, 1951 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognised, on all temporary differences at the reporting date bebween the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reparting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilicies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when Lhey
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax refating to items recognised directly (N equity or OCI is
recognised In equity or OCI and not in the Statement of Profit and Loss. MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are carred forward by the
Company for a specified period of time, hence It Is grouped with Deferred Tax Asset. MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there Is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay narmal income tax during the specified peried.

Current tax assets and current tax liabliities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right o set off the recognised amounts and there s an intention o
settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitles are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off cument
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the defemed tax assets and the deferred tax habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authorlby.

A deferred tax asset is recognised bo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will bo available against which the temporary difference can be
utilized except:

a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductibfe temporary difference arises from the initial recognltion of an asset or abilty in & transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the actounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

by In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investmants in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the exterit that It is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utifised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewad at each reporting datg and are recognised / reduced o the extent that it is probable / ne longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

The Govemment of India, on September 20, 2019, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, insarmed a new Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act,
1861, which provides an cotion to the Company Ffor paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/conditions defined in the said section, The
Company has decided to move to lower tax rate from FY 2020-21 onwards under section 115 BAA.

Earnings Per Share:
Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS™) is computed by dividing the net profit / {loss) afeer tax for the year atiributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted
gverage number of equity shares cutstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calosating diluted eamings per share, net profit / {loss) after tax for the year attributable to the equity sharehaolders is divided by the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Foreign Currency transactions:
Transactions in cumrencles other than the Company's functional currency (i.e. foreign currenzies) are recognised at the rates of eschange pravailing at the dates cf
the transactions. At the end of each reporting perlod, monetary items denominated In Foreign currencies are translated at the retes prevadling at that date, Non-
monetary items carried at falr value that are denominated in foreign currendes are translzted =t the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Mor-monetary items that are measured in terms of hisborfcal cost in a foreign currency zre translabed using the exchange rate as at the date of initial
transactions.

Exchenge differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss In the periad in which they arise except for:
() exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under canstruction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

Financial Instruments:

Financial assats and finandal liabilidies are recognised when a Comaany beromes a party to the contractusl provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:

Finanda| assets and finanda! liabilities are inldally measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly abiributable to the acqulsition or issue of financlad
z5sers and financial liabilities (ather than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary cests relzied to bormowings} are
added ta or deducted from the falr value af the financial assets or financial Ylabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs diractly attriburable
to the acquisition of finandal assets or financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss are dharged to the Statement of Profit and .ose over the tenure of the
financiai assets or finandal liabilties.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Company ¢lassifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, Feir Value through Other Comprehensive Income {"FYOCI™) or Fair Value
through Profit or Loss (“FYTPL"} on the basis of following:

(i) the entity’s businass mode! for managing the financial assets and
(inthe contractual cash flow characteristics of the finandal asset.



{t)

{ud

Amortised Cost:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost If both of the following canditions are met:
{f) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective I to hald financial assets in order t6 coliect contractual cash Rows and

(i) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount,
outstanding.

In case of financial assets dassified and measured at amortised cost, any interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impalrment are reccgnised In the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Falr Value through OCI:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at falr value through OCI if bath of the following conditions are met:

(i) the financial asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selting financial assets and

(fi) the tontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payients of princlpal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Fair value through Profit or Loss:
A financial asset shall be classifled and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCLL

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measurad in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
asses,

For financial assets at FVTPL, net gains or losses, including any Interest or dividend income, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financlal liabilities
Financial liabilitles are classified as elther financlal liabilities at FYTPL or ‘other financia! liabllities’.

Financial Liabllitles at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are ¢lassiied as at FYTPL when the financial liabllity is held for trading or Is a cerivative (except for effective hedge) or are designated upon
initial recognition as FYTPL.

Gains or Losses, including any interest expense on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statemertt of Profit and Loss.

Other Financisf Uabilities:
Other finandiai lfabliities {inckding borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exacty discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fees and points paid or received that farm an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction cosis and other premiums or discounts) through the experted life of the financial fiabllity, or (where appropriate) &
shorter paricd, to the amartised cost an Inftial recognition.

Interest expense (based on the effective interest method), foreign exchange gains and iosses, and any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised In the
Statement of Profit end Less.

Impairment of financial assets:

Expected credit losses are reccanlzed for alf financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in FYTPL cabegory. For financial assets
other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for 2il originsted or acquired financial assets if at the
reporting date the ¢redit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial mcognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime
expected credit losses i the credit fisk on financial asset increases significamtly since Rs initial recognition.

The Company’s trade receivables do not contain signifiant financing ¢omponent and es per simplified approach, loss allowences on trade receivables amo
measured using provision matrix at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expeced cash shortfall,

The impairment fosses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights o the cash faws from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retaing substantially all the risks and
rewards of cwnership and continues to control the transfetred asset, the Company recognisas its retained interest In the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferned financial asset, the Company continues
1o recogrise the financial asset and alse recognises an assacieted liability for amounts it has to pay.

On derecognidon of a financlal asset, the difference between the esset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or lass that had been recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity is recogrised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company de-tecognises financtal fiabilities when and only when, the Company’s olligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial llabllity de-recagnised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Guarantae Contract Liabilities
Fnandial Guarartee Contract Liabilitles are disclosed in financial statements in accordance with Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liaoilities and Contingent
hegels,

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with banks that are readily convertible into cash
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitmerts.

Finandal liabilities and eauity instruments:

{i} Classification s debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are dassified as either financial liabllities or as equity in acordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangemcnis and the definitions of a financial fiability and an eguity instrument,
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{it) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of #ts liabilities, Equity instrurnents issued by a
Company are recoanised at the proceeds receivad.,

Derivative financial instruments; ,
The Company enters into derivative financial Instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency sweps to manage s
expDSUre 1o interes: rate, foreign exchange rate risks and commodity prices. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes,

Derivatives are initialty recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The resulting gain or foss |s recognised in profit or loss Immediately excluding detivatives designated as cashflow hedge.

Segment Reporting: Identification of Segments:

An operating segment is & component of the Company that engages in business actlvities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenges, whose operating
results are reqularly reviewad hy the corpany’s Chief Operating Dacision Maker ("CODM™} to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available.
Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM ewvaluates the Company's petformance and allucates resources based on an analysis of
variaus performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Cash flow staterment

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax Is adjusted for the effects of wansactions of non-cash nalure and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, imvesting and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available informasion.

Critical acoounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertatnty:
The preparation of the Company's financial staternents requires management to make judaements, estimates ang assumpdons that affect the reported amounts

Critical judopmeats in applying acrounting policies:
In the process of applying the Campany's accounting policies, managemait has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the
emaunts recognised in the consalidated financlal statements.

Ciassification of Lease Ind AS 116:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies ¥ be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, Identification of a lease requires significart, judgment.
The Company uses sipnificart judgement in arriving at the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term &s the non-canceilable period of a
lease, together with both periads covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that eption; and parfods covered by
an opfion to terminate the ease If the Company B reazenably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise an option i extend a lease, or nat to exercise an option to terminale & lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive for the Company to exercise the option o extend the lease, or not o exercise the aption t¢ terminate the lease. The distount rate is generally based on
the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease beino evatuated or for a group of leases with similar characteristics.

Hey assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and ather key sources of estimation uncertainty st the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carying amourits of assets and liabifiies within the next finarcial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Bxisting dncumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or dreumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 2ssumptions when
they oceur,

() Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intanqible Agsets:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and Industry trends %or determining the economic fife of an assetfcomponent of an asset. The
useful Jives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the
remaining useful life of the assets, In case of certain minfng rights the amardisation is based on the exracted quantity to the total mineral reserve.

(if) Impairment of Assets:

The Company reviews its camrying value of assets znnually where there is an indicaticn of impairment by estimating the future economic benefits from using such
assets If the recoverable amount is less than Ks carmylng armount, the impaimment loss is accourted for,

{iii} Recognition and measurement of deferved tax assets and liabilities:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which there ¥ probability of utlisaticn against the
future taxable profil, The Company uses judgement w determine the amount of deferred tax liability / asset that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing

and the level of future taxable profits and business developments.

(iv) Income Taxes:

The Company calculates income tax expense based on reported income and estimated exemptions / deducton likely available to the Company, The Company has
moved to new tex regime {Section 115 6AA) from FY 2020-21 onwards . The Company hag applied the lower income tax rates on the deferred tax assets f
liabilities to the extent these are expected to realised or settied in the future when the Company may be subject to lower tax rate based on the future finandials
projections,

(¥) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

When the fair values of Rnancial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuztion technigues Induding the Discounted Cash Flow model, The inputs to these modgis are taken from observable markets
where passible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
fiquidity risk, credit risk and volatility,

{vi} Defined benefit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuaria! valuations, An actuarfal valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discolmt rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit abligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reperting date,

{vii} Mines Restoration Dbfigation:

1n determining the falr value of the Mines Restoration Obligation, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected cost of mines
restoration and the expected timing of those costs.

{viii) Disposal Groups{Assets held for sale :
The Company has used comparable mavket muliiple approach to assess the fair value of the disposal group.

Under the market muitiple approach, erterprise value of a company is determined by using muitiples derived from valuations of comparable companigs, as
manifested through stock market valuations of listed companies considering Enterprize Valuef Revenue and Enterprise vatue/ EBITDA multiples based on their
market price and latest published financial information.

Anneonriate adiustments are made fa.a. for deht and surnlilg assats] o arrive at the eouity value of the rdisnasal oroun.















UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited
NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOED MARCH 31, 2022

fate A - Lepses {Ind AS 11€):
As & lessae

fallowlng are the carmying value of Right of Use Assets for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

(T i Croces)
Partculem Gress Block d depredation and I Net Block
At at Meructiorsf As at| As at a As at| s 8t
Apl 01, 2021 Addtores Transfer warch 31, 2022| Agei 01, 2020 PO e vRA Tearsfer March 31, 2022| Macch 31, 2022
Fant and Machinery 20,20 . 20.20 - 1167 .62 12,20 - -
Tatal W20 - 0, My - .8y 0.8% 1230 - .
Net Dep Gharged to of Profit & Lo 0.63 130 - -
€ ki Lo
Particulars Gross Block [ A d depredation and Net Elock
As at, As at] s at|
ABat beductors; As ot eductionaf
Addltors March 31, 2021 For the year March 51, 2021 ™arch 31, 2028
#prll 01, 2020 Trsrer (restaragy| %08 01 2020 Trarafer resated \restved)
Pl ard Madvinery 03¢ 020 *15 252 ii.a7 LK~ |
Tetal 20,20 - .20 $.16 152 11,87 LK~ |
Nt Depreclation Charged to Statement of Profit & Loss 1.52
() Lemse Expenses recognized In Smtemert of Froftt and Lass, not induded In e measarement of kiake lablities:
(¥ In Srares]
Year Enged March
Particulars — :’;: 33024
Ireiated.
Frpernas rebiting to lerses of w-value assots, cothuding ghort-term leases of .o
low vakue azets " g.15
[©)  Amounts recopniped in Statement of Cach Aows
{% In Croras)
Tear Ended March
Yunr Endwd|
Particulars March 31,2022 31.2.0%‘1
Timal 2eh surtficw for leases [1.56)

oy Income from sub leasing of Right b use assets |s ¥ pll

























































Nota 51

Note 52

Note 53

Excaptional tem -

During the year ended 31/03/2022, UlraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited {*UNCL") entered into an agreament with Galata Chemicals Holding Gmbh, Germany
("Galata"} as per which Galata along with its affilistes has made necessary paymerts to UNCL for the purposes of refinancng the loens given to 3B and
acquisition of entire shareholding of UNCL in 38 and UNCL has, inter aliz, transferred its entire shareholding in 3B to Galata as on 31/03/2022. Consequent to the
transaction, 3B has ceased to be a whally-owned subsidiary of the company and recognised ¥ 159.92 cores as exceptional gain for the year ended 31/03/2022.

Estimation of uncertainty relating to the global heskh pandemic on COVID-IS :

In the face of COVID - 19 pandemic the Company’s operatians across locations were stopped in line with the Government directives, This had an adverse im pact
on revenues during Q1FY21, as expected.

Even before the formai announcement of the national lockdown, keeping In mind the well-being of Its emplovees, the Company enabled work from home' for its
empioyess and had taken all necassary steps to ensure a seamless transition to the new ways of working for employees, while at the same time ensuring
business cominuty, The Compary was in continuous engagement with all s stakeholders through various digitat platforms, Critical Response Teams were set up
aross the organisation to plan scenarias and respond o the rapidly changing situation.

With the Government allowing select actiities to operate, the Company gradually resumed operations at its estabiishments after obtalning NEcessaty qovernment
approvals and ensuring compliance with the statutory guidelines in line with the standard operating procedure {SOP) announced by the Ministry of Home Affairs,
Government of India.

With the sasing of leckdown, operations gradually stabilised.

The Company recovered the carnying amount of all its assets including inventory, receivables and loans in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s caphal
and financial resources remained entirely protected and its liquidity position remain adequately covered, The Company was able to service its debt cbligations as
per schedule and o due dates. 1t did not avail the moraterium extended by the banks as per the Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

Previous veat figures have been regrouped wherever necessary ko correspond with current year classification / disciosure.

Signatures to Note't' to '53

As per our report of even date attached

For Khini Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Ho: 105146W/W- 100621

For and on bahesif of the Board of Directors

)

Partmer
ICAI Membership No: 117348

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26th, 2022

D.D. Rathi
Director
DIN : 00012575
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Chief Financial Officer
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Date : April 26th, 2022

Alka Bharucha

Director
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HIfraTarh Framont Middlae Fact Tnvoackmante | imitad

Amount inIINR Crores

Particulars Note No. As at As at
MAR 31, 2022 MAR 31, 2021

Hroperty, FIant ana cquipment 1 1,325.73 1,342.77
Capital work-in-progress 1 1.53 4.99
Goodwill 1 942.09 908.77
Other Intangible assets 1 3277 35.27
Right. to Use Asset- Lease 2 141.41 161.21
Financial Assets
[nvestments 3 0.28 0.27
Other Financial Assets 1 13.56 12.95
13.84
Other Non-Current assets 5 - 0.34
Tntal Nan Currant Assets 2,457.37 2,466.60
IMVENLONES [ 218.97 177.31
Financial Assets
Trade rec  ables 7 511.92 370.81
Cash and cash equivalents B 7.25 15.49
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents 9 34.10 51.17
Loans 10 0.10 0.06
Other Rnancial Assets 11 144.79 139.18
698.16
Other current assets 12 9.11 11.89
Asset held for digposal 1.22 1.18
927.46 767.09
_ 3,384.83 3,233.69
LyUILY 1141 LapiLa) 13 709.21 684.12
Cther Equity 13 701.88 582.95
1,411.09 1,267.07
BOrrawINgs 14 1,061.09 1,316.00
Long term Lease lability 15 136.06 156.27
Provisions 16 25.76 24.71
Other non-currant liabifities 17 0.47 0.60
1,223.38 1,497.58
FITIEnCle Lidoiles
Borrowings iB8 303.59 22017
Trade payables 19 400.02 200.33
Short termn Lease liability 20 14.68 13.23
Other fin  al liabilities 21 15.10 733.39 1371
Other current liabilities 22 5.78 %.53
Pravisions 23 11.19 12.07
. 750.36 469.04
_ 3,384.83 3,233.69
In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board
For KPMG Lower Gulf Limited
Partner Director

Dubai, April 25th, 2022
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Period ended Period ended

Particulars Note No.

MAR 31, 2022 MAR 31, 2021
Sale of Produdts and Services {Net) 29 1,459.82 1,140.68
Other Operating Revenues 24 11.79 2.37
Revenue from Operations 1,471.61 1,143.05
QOther Income 25 6.84 £.48
1,478.45 1,149.53
Cost of Kaw Materials Consumed 26 169.12 142.89
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 27 226.49 93.54
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-
Trade and Work-in-Progress 28 2.35 16.98
Employee Banefits Expense 29 103.49 96.04
Finance Costs 30 22.19 34.53
Depreciation and Amgrtisation Expense 31 97.12 $6.23
Power and Fuel 522.85 369.45
Freight and Forwarding Expense 32 94.25 53.89
Other Expenses 33 148.88 155.36
1,386.74 1,058.91
91.71 90.62
FIUML glu IuuwELTe W wwi e s of the Parent 91.71 90.62
A gy vene wial win now v Towassmcu w0t & Loss-Actuarial Gain an
Empioyee Benefits 0.69 (3.66)
Hems that will be recdlassified to Profit & Loss-Cash flow hedge & FCTR 26.53 {17.10}
27.22 {20.76)
27.22
118.93 65.86
118.93
oaimiL \III A TAW] 26-68 3033
Diluted ¢in INR) 26,58 30.33
Weighted Average Equity Shares (in Nos,) 34,369,140 29,875,594
Weighted AverageEquity Shares ind Diluted Shares (in Nos.) 34,369,140 29,875,594

In terms of our report attached.
For KPMG Lower Gulf Limited

For and on behalf of the Board

Director

Dubai, April 25th, =~~~
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A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Profit before tax

From Continuing operations

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & Amartisation

Pravision for Retirement benefits

Profit on sale of Fixed Assabs

Interest and Finance Charges

Borrowing Cost (Lease Liabiiity}

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Movement in working capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
{Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables
Decreasef(Increase) in Loans and Advancas

{Increase) in Trade Payables and other Liabilities

Cash Generated From Operations

Payment for Employee Benefits

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sales of Fixed Assels

Payment from Investement of subsidiary

Cash received along with Acquisition of Assats

Met Cash Generated from Investing Activities (B)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital (Including Premium)
Proceeds from Issue of Preference Share capital
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings {Net)

Payment of Principal towards Lease Liability

Interest on Lease Liability

Interest and Finance Charges paid

Net Cash (Used in) Financing Activities (C)

Net (Decrease) fIncrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents

Effect of exchange rate on consolidation of Foreign Subsidiary

Cash and Bank balance as per Note 8 & Note 9

Notes :

1. Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect method.

= mm- 3 AN_ Wm_ _m W ____ _E.___ ___5_ ®m:I.__%32_ %

MAR 31, 2022

MAR 31, 2021

91.71 90.62
97.12 96.23
3.40 3.33
(0.08) (0.05)
13.81 25.30
B.38 9.24
214.33 224.67
(35.16) 22,52
(127.51) 121.03
2.68 (125.55)
117.72 {222.23)
172.06 20.44
(4.12) {0.51)
167.94 19.93
{11.46) (4.81)
0.25 0.05
- (0.08)
- 3.64
{11.21) (1.118)
- 292.44
- 1,023,55
(227.35) (1,315.99)
75.34 (53.14)
(13.73) (12.09)
(8.38) (9.24)
{14.07) (28.60)
(188.19) (103.07)
(31.45) (84.32)
66.66 159,78
6.15 (8.80)
41,35 66.66

2, Purchase of fixed assets includes movements of capital work-in-progress & Capital Advances.

3. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.

4. Changes in habilities arising from financing activities Non Current Current Borrowing
Borrowing

As at Mar 31,2021 1,316.00 220.17

Cash flows (Indiuding Preference shares) (227.38) 75.34 |

Non Cash changes :

Others (Transfer to current maturities & Fxchange variation) {27.53} 8.08

As at MAR 31, 2022 1,061.09 303.5%

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached.
For KPMG Lower Gulf Limited

Partnar

For and on behalf of the Board

Directar
Dubai, April 25th, "™~



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limibed

Amount in INR Crores
Particulars Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Asat APR | Additions | On account| Deductons/ | Translabon | As at MAR As at For the | Deductions/ | Translaion As at As at MAR
01, 2021 of Adjustments Reserve 31, 2022 | APR 01, | perlod | Adjustments Reserve MAR 31, | 31, 2022
AcquislHon 2021 2022
(A) Tangible Assets
Freehold Land 4.61 - - - 0.17 478 - - - - - 4.78
Buildings 211.34 344 - - 7.81 22259 3573 9349 - 147 46.59 176.00
Plant and Machinery 1,532.43 10.11 - - 56.38 1,598,092 37441 69.38 - 14.95 458.74 | 1,140.18
Furnlture ard Fixtures 10,76 0.27 - {0.02) 033 11.40 711 106 {0.02) 0.27 8.42 2,98
vehicles 5.28 1.24 - (0.95) 0.20 577 4.40 0.22 {0.79) 0.15 3.98 1.79
Tokzl (A} 1,76442 15.06 - {0.97) 64.95 184346 | 47165 B80.05 {0.51) 16.84 517.73 | 1,325.73
{B} Intangible Assets .
Other Intangible Assets 57.25 - - - 2.10 59.35 21.98 3.73 - .85 26.57 3278
Total {B) 57.25 - - - 2,10 59.35 21.98 3.73 - 0.86 26.57 32.78
Total Assets (A+B) 1,821.67 15.06 - {0.97} 6705 190281 | 443.63 B3.7E {0.81) 17.70 544.30 | 1,358.51
Capital Work-in-Prograss 4.99 1.53
1,366.04
Nokes @
Depreciation for the pericd 83.78

Depraciation as per Profit and Loss Aaount
Intangiable assets include assels costing INR 43,20 Cr (Previous year-49.20 Cry comprising non-refundable connection fees b electricity supplier with finite life not owned by the company.
Amortised over a period of 15 years.

43.78

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars Gross Biock Beprediation Net Block

As st APR | Additions | On account| Deductions/ | Translabion | Asat MAR | As at APR| Forthe | Deductons/ | Translation| As at MAR| As at MAR

01, 2020 of Adjustments Reserye 31,2021 | 01, 2020 | Year | Adjustments | Reserve | 31,2021 | 31, 2021

Arquisition
(A} Tangible Assels
Freehold Land 4.77 - - - {0.16) 4.61 - - - - - 4.61
Buildings 156.84 0.21 6054 - (6.05) 211.34 28.63 819 - {1.09) 3573 175.61
Plant and Machinery 1,488.28 4.63 90.89 - (51.37} 1,532.43 32124 64.8% . (11.82) 37441 1,158.02
Fumniture and Fixtures 10.55 035 022 {8.01) (0.35) 10.76 5.20 1.14 {0.01) {0.22) 7.11 3.65
¥ehkcles 5.89 - 0.01 {0.43) (0.1} 5.28 4.34 043 {0.21) {0.16) 4.40 0.88
Total Tangible Assats 1,566.33 5.19 151.46 0,44 58.12 1.764.42 36050 74865 (0.22) (13.29) 42165 1,342.77
(B) Im=ngible Assets
Intangible Asset 59.25 - - - {2.00} 57.25 18.95 3.71 - (0.69) 21.98 35.27
Tota| Assels (A+B) 1,725.58 5.19 151.46 (0.44) (60.12) 1821.67 37947 7836 (0.22) {131.98) 443.63 1,378.04
Capital Work-in-Prograss 4.36 4.99
1,333.03
Notes :
Depreciation for the Year 78.36
Depreciation as per Profit and Loss Acount 78.36
Movemnent in Goodwill:
Particulars As at MAR | As at MAR
31, 2022 31, 2021

Opening Balance Q08.77 840,50
Add: Exchange difference recognised in FCTR 33.32 (31.73)
Closing Balance g5 per Balance Sheel 942.09 908.77
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NOTE: 2- RIGHT TO USE ASSET- LEASE

{a} Following are the carrying value of Right of Use Assets for the year ended MAR 31, 2022

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars Gross Block Depreciation and Amortisation Met Block
As at APR On Translation As at MAR |Asat APRO1, Onaccount Forthe Translation As at As at
01,2021 accountof reserve 31, 2022 2021 of period reserve MAR 31, MAR 31,
acyuisition acquisition 2022 2022
Leasehold Land 62.44 - 229 654.73 14,52 - 207 0.59 17.88 46.85
Plant and Machinery 172.02 {(11.72) 5.88 166.18 110.54 - 5.30 416 121.00 45.18
Ships 63,18 - 2.31 65.47 11.34 - 4.27 0.48 16.09 49.38
Total 297.62 (11.72) 10.48 296.38 136.40 - 13.34 5.23  154.97 141.41
Particulars Gross Blogk _53preciat|'0n and Amortisation Net Block
As at APR Cn Translation As at Mar 31, | As at APR0O1, Onaccount Forthe Translation Asat | As atMar
01,2020 accountof reserve 2021 2020 of year reserve  Mar 31, | 31, 2021
acquisition acquisition 2021
| hold Land 62.76 1.82 (2.14) 52.44 1237 - 2.60 (0.45) 14 .52 47.92
Plant and Machinery 178.02 - {6.00) 172.02 10317 - 11.02 {3.65) 110.54 G1.48
Ships 65.36 - (2.20) 83.186 7.40 - 4.25 {0.30} 11.35 51.81
Total 306.14 1.82 (10.34) 297.62 122.94 - 17.87 {4.40} 136.41 161.21

{b} Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, not included in the measurement of lease fiabilities:

Particulars MAR 31, 2022

MAR 31, 2021

Expenses relating to short-term leases {1.42)

0.11

{c) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities— contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Particulars MAR 31, 2022 MAR 31, 2021
Less than one year 22.11 21.33

Cne to five years 80.37 87 17

More than five years 14530 140.16

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 257.78 248.66

Discounted Lease ligbilities included in the statement of financial position

Current lease liability {14.68}) {13.23)
Nan-Current lease liability (136.06) (156.27)
Total Discounted Lease liabilities (150.74) {169.50)
{d} Amounts recognised in Statement of Cash Flows:

Particulars MAR 31, 2022 MAR 31, 2021
On account of short term ieases {1.44) 0.11
Lease repaid 13.73 12.08
Interest repaid 8.38 9.24
Total cash outflow 20.67 21.44

for leases




1(A)

1(B)

1)

(D}

Aqeina schedule of capital-werk-in progress (CWIP) :

Amount in INR Crares

Amopunt fn CWIP for a perod of Total

LTE_ITH 1-2 years v;;rs Mare than 3 years
As on March 31,2032
Profects in progress
Analyser 0.23 0.23
Office, TT egulpement - -
Weigh bridge rhoom Extension 0.08 0.08
SCNR systern- secondary mitigation for Nox reduction 172 iy
Total 0.31 - - 1.22 3
As on March 31,2021:
Projects in progress
Pel coke skorage shed 0.57 2,52 3.09
Office, IT eguipement 0,05 o.05
Qffice, IT eguipement 0.01 31431
Office, 1T equipernent - -
PLC & Automation Sysiem Q.66 Q.66
SCHR system- secendary mitigation for Nox reductio 1,18 1.18
Total 1.19 2.52 1.18 - 4.99

Completion schedule for capital-work-in progress whose completion is overdue or as excesded its cost compared o its original ptan:

Amout In INR Crores

To be complaeted in

Less than 23
1 year 1-2 years years More than 3 years
Project 1
Project 2

i jects:
f%ﬁn system- secondary mitigation for Nox reduction

1.18

Project 2

Ageing schedule of Intangible assets under development:

Amount in INR, Crores

Amaount in Intangible assets under development For a

period of

Total

Less than
1 year

1-2 years

2-3
years

More than 3 years

As on March 31,2022

Projects in progress
Proj temporani ended

Tatal

As on March 31,2021

Profects in preqress

Proferts terporartly stisoended
Total

Completion schedule for capital-work-in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its ariginal plan;

in IMR Crones
To be com
Less than 2.3
1 1-X years years More than 3 years
Projeck 1
Praject 2
Project 1

Project 2
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AMOUNL IN_LNK LIores

. As at As at
Particulars 31/02/2022 31/03/2021
Nos, Amount Nos. Amaurt
CYUILy INSIrumencs:
Indonesian Rupiah 8,923 each fully
PT UlraTech Mining Indonesla 51,951 0.36 51,951 0.35
Indonesian Rupiah 9,163 each fully paid:
PT UltraTech Investment Indonesia 100,000 0.76 100,000 0.73
1.12 1.08
Less: Praviston for Diminution in value of Investments (0.84) {0.81)
0.28 0.27
amLuLy Lpuai 13.56 12.98
13.56 12.98
ALl MUY | s - 0.22
Prepayments - 0.12
- 0.34
RV IO 1G] SL 1L Y 45.62 43 23
Work-in-progress 10.25 10.68
Finished Goods at factory 11.40 12,51
Stores & Spares at Facory 29.39 87.16
Fuel at Factory 47.07 21,92
Packing Materials at Factory 5.23 2.81
Scrap {valued at net realisable value) 0.01 0.01
218.97 177.31
LI e yuwd, e ed 190.29 174.57
Considered good, Unsecured 238.83 190,34
Trade Recejvables from Relabed Party 82.80 5.80
Significant increas Credit Risk 62.20 64.11
574.12 434.92
Less: Allowances for credit losses {(62.20} {64.11)
511.92 370.81
T T
(1) Undisputed Trade recelvables - 350.88 156.17 4.76 0.10 511.91
considered good
{m) U_ndlsputed Trade Receivables — credit _ _ _ 16.37 16.37
impaired
Total as on March 31, 2022 350.88 156.17 50.59 16.47 574.11
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — N
considered gaod 258.90 47.75 0.02 64.14 370.81
_(|I|) L!ndlsputed Trade Receivables — credit R . . 64.11 64.11
impaired
Total as on March 31, 2022 258.90 47.75 0.02 128.25 434.92
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AETIUUIIL L AL LTS

; As at As at
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
nt) 7.23 15.38
Lasil Ul iy 0.02 0.11
7.25 15.49
B it ket F7I8 | SohE s A4 AL L] i L o B st ina S a1 n i 15) 34.10 51.17
34.10 51.17
Lt s g 0.10 0.06
0.10 0.06
IJCP\DIL I UUH, LY PUJ =" =} 143-13 138-0?
Security Depaosit 1.66 111
144.79 139.18
Advances to Emplovees 0.92 0.57
Advancestosup 3 2.55 6.54
Prepaid Expenses 5.64 4.78
Other Receivables - -
9.11 11.89
No. of Shares Amaunt No. of Shares Armount
A L T e e 34,369,140 an 34,369,140 _
I_Lll.l'll,r DIEIES U ALY WY Cald 34'369’1’40 709-21 34,369,1% 68‘4.}.2
B. OTHER EQUITY
Securities Premium Reserve 113.B1 113.81
General Raserve 2.05 2.05
Retained Eamings 551.11 455.40
Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges {5.22) {8.74)
Exchange differences on translating the financial
staternertis of a foreign operation 35.64 12.63
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 4.49 3.80
Total Other Equity 701.88 582.95

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
2) Securities Premium Reserve: Securities premium reserve is ¢radited when shares are issued at premium, It is utlised in accordance with the
provisions of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentureswiite-off equity related expenses Jike

underwriting costs, et

b) General reserve: The general reserve is Used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

¢} Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve has been created for Exchange variation in Opening Equity Share Capltal and Reserves and Surplus of

Ultratech Cement Bahrain Co. WLL.

d) Effective Portion of Cashflow Hedges: The company has designated its hedging instruments obtained after April 01, 2015 as cash flow hedges and
any effective portion of cashflow hedage |s maintained in the said reserve. In case the hedging becomes ineffective the amount is recognised to the

Statement of Profit and Loss.






Particulars

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Amount in INR Crores

MUYANICE AL WUSULIS D 0-94 0.93
Others {including other Deposits, Provision for Expenses etc.) 4.84 4.55
5.78 9.53

rur cmpioyee venefits 11.19 12.07
11.19 13,07

Period Ended Period Ended

3170372022 31/03/2021

aFATL W UL

NI TR TS

Miscellaneous Income [ Receipts

oars anid LU IT ALauug [E

Prafit on Sale of Fixed Assats (net)
Prowvision no longer required written back
Others

PSSR
Add: Exchange rate fluctuation on acocount of average rate
transfemred to currecny translation reserve
Add : Opening stock adjustment {For cument year Star Super Cement
Industries LLC acquisition and previcus year refates to discor 2d operations
of Bangladesh uniks)

Purchase and Inddemntal Expenses

Less: Exchange rate fluctuation on acocount of average rate
transferred to currecny translation reserve
Less: Clasing Stock

LTS IR )

LLIV T T L PV R

Finished Goods
Add / (Less): Bk 2 rate fluctuation on aoccount of
average rmate transierred o currency ranslation reserve

Opening Inventories
Work-in-progress
Finished Goods
Add : Opening stock adjustment {For cument year Star Super Cement
Indusiries LLC acquisiton and previous year relates to discontinued operations
of Bangladesh units)

Add { {Less): Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of
average rate transferred ta currency transiation reserve

1,459.82

1.58
10.11
11.79

1,471.61

0.06
0.08
0.2%
65.41
6.84

42,22
0.80

170.94
213.96

0.78)

45.62
169.12

226.49
226.49

10.25%
11.40

' (0.37)
21.28

10.68
1251

0.44

23.63
2,35

1,140.68

0.72
1.65
2.37
1.143.05

1.08
0.05
5.21
0.14
6.48

35.74
{0.64)

13.21
137.45
185.76

0.65

42.22
142.89

93.54
53.54

10.68
12.51

0.36
23.55

24.73
13.73

2.79

{0.72)

40.53
16.98
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Particulars Period Ended Period Ended
31/03/2022 310372021
LT, TP G LI 96.61 89.41
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 3.40 3.33
Expenses on Emplayees Stock Options Scheme 0.60 0.27
Staff Welfare Expenses 2.88 3.03
103.49 96.04
LIS Tl LAPCI | ey
On Borrowings 6.88 21.09
Others {Including LC discounting) 1.51 1.14
8.39 22.23
Other Borrowing Cost (Upfront fee amortisation} 5.42 3.06
Other Borrowing Cost (Lease Liability) B.38 9.24
22,19 34.53
LSRN SLaLiu 80105 ?4-65
Amortisation 3.73 n
Depreciation on ROU asset 13.34 17.87
57.12 96.23
sy P iuus 94.25 53.89
54.25 53.89
LUsUinpuon u ==, Snare Parts and Components 28.30 2B.36
Consumpton of F g Materials 14.564 11.47
Repairs to Plant ana machinery, Building and Qthers 24.60 22.87
Insurance 4.97 5.15
Rent {including Lease Rert) {1.42) 0,11
Rates and Taxes 25.13 25.21
Advertisement 0.52 0.18
Sales Promotion and Cther Sellling Expenses 0.23 0.35
Exchange Loss (net) - 0.06
Miscellaneous Expenses 51.91 651.59
148.88 155.36




Note 1({A) Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

Company Overview

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited (the Holding Company) was formed in Jebel Ali Free Zone
pursuant to Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority Cffshore Companies Regulations 2003 with limited liabifity on 20-
fictober-2009 under Registration No 132239. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries are together referred
as “the Company”.

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Cement and Cement related products. The
company’s holding company is UltraTech Cement Limited, India.

Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Statement of Compliance & Basis of Preparation and Presentation:

These consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) are prepared in
accordance with the Group Accounting Policies which are in compliance with the Indian Accounting Standards
{*Ind AS™).

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting
held on April 25™, 2022,

(b} Basis of Preparation

The finandal statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities:

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments measured at fair value

(i} Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

(ii¥) Asseis held for disposal — measured at the the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs on
disposal of assets and its value in use.

(iv) Employee's Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation.

(v) Assets and liabilities acquired under Business Combination measured at fair value; and

(vi) Employee share based payment measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

Functional an esentati rren
The Financial statements are presented in INR {(Rounded off to crores), however UAE dirhams is the

functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates.

Exchange rates adopted 31 March 2022 31% March 2021
Closing Rate 1 AED = 20.63 INR 1 AED = 19.51 INR
Average Rate 01/04/2020-31/03/2021 01/04/2020-31/03/2021

1 AED = 20.28 INR. 1 AED = 20.21 INR

Classification of Assets and Liabilities to Current/Non-Current

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non-Current
classification of its Assets and Liabilities.



For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

(iy It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycie; or
(i) Itis heid primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(ili) It is expected to rezlise the asset within twelve months after the reporting peried; or

(iv) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

(i} Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

(i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(i) It is due to be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the setilement of the liabiiity for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

The initfal cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its
intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the ktem will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cest are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they were incurred.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
{major components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when
they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

PPE are stated at their cost of acquisition/installation or construction net of accumulated depreciadon, and
impairment losses, if any.

{d) Expenditure during construction period:

Expenditure/ Income during construction period (induding financing cost related to borrowed funds for
construction or acquisition of qualifying PPE) is included vnder Capital Work-in-Progress and the same is
allocated to the respective PPE on the completion of their construction. Advances given towards acquisition or
construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-
current Assets”,

(e) Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act or as per technical
assessment. Freehold Land with indefinite life is not depreciated.

Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of PPE is the
period over which PPE is expected to he available for use by the Company.



(f

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in Schedule II
to the Act. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of
the PPE and the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management’s best estimation of obtaining
economic benefits from those classes of assets. The estimated useful life is reviewed periodically, with the
effect of any changes in estimate heing accounted for on a prospective basis.

Such classes of assets and their estimated useful lives are as under:

No | Nature Estimated Useful life
1. | Buildings 3-60 Years

2. | Plant & Equipment 8-50 Years

3. | Office Equipment 4-7 Years

4. | Furniture and Fixtures 7-12 Years

Company Vehicles {other than those

> provided to the employees) 5-12 Years
Motor Cars given to the employees as per |
6. the Company’s Scheme 4-5 Years
7. | Servers and Nebworks 3 Years
8. | Stores and Spares in the nature of PPE 8-30 Years
9. Assets individually costing less than or Fully Depreciated in the year of purchase

equal to AED 500 (%10,000)

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition and in
case of Projects from the date of commencement of cemmercial production. Depreciation on
deductions/disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis up to the month preceding the month of
deduction/disposal.

Intangible Assets and Amortisation:
Intangible Assets acquired separately:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated fmpairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price (net of tax / duty
credits avalled wherever applicable) and any directly atiributable cost of bringing the assets fo its working
condition for its intended use. The Company determines the amortisation period as the period over which the
future economic benefits will Aow to the Company after taking into account all relevant facts and
dircumstances. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed periodically, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being acoounted for on a prospective basis.

Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives / basis of amortisation are as under:

No Nature Estimated Useful life /hasis of amortisation
Asset not owned by the Company As per peried specified in the agreement
Sofware 3 Years

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an item of intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceads and the carrying amount of such item of intangible asset and
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

{a) Non-current assets {or disposal groups) classified as held for sale:

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable. Such assets or group of assets / liabilities
are presented separately in the Balance Sheet, in the line “Assets / Disposal groups held for sale” and



*Liabilities included in disposal group held for sale” respectively. Once classified as held for sale, intangible
assets and PPE are no longer amortised or depreciated.

Such assets or disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

(h} Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, tha Company reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial assets {o
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, ot otherwise they are ailocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vatue using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequentiy reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the cartying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i} Inventories:

Inventories are valued as follows:

. Raw materials, fuel, stores & spares and packing materials:

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to be realisable
at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis which includes expenditure incurred for acguiring inventeries like
purchase price, import duties, taxes (net of tax credit) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
heir present location and condition.

. Work-in- progress (WIP), finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run inventories:

Valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw materials, cost of
conversicn and other casts incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of
Stock-in Trade includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to the present
location and condition. Cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis.

. Waste / Scrap:

Waste / Scrap inventory is valued at NRV.

Net realisable value is the estimated selfing price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make tha <ala



§)] Employee Share based payments:

For Stock Appreciation Rights ("SARs") which are cash-settied share-based payments, the fair value of liability
is recognised for the services acquired over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to
the payment. At the end of each reporting period until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement,
the ifability is re-measured based on fair value of the SAR's and any changes in fair value of the liability are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(k) Borrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its
intended use and borrowing costs are being incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Al other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing oost includes interest expense, amortization of discounts, hedge related cost incurred in
connection with foreign currency borrowings, ancilary costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds
and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the Interest cost.

{n Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present ebligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to
settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the fime value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding
of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A present o jation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent
liability. Cor  ent liabilities are also disdosed when there is a pessible ebligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or hoh-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly 1 he control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not
disclosed as contingent, liabilities.

Lonangent 5 are not recognized in financial st n the récogiiuw.. of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, in financial
statements, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

{(m) Revenue Recognition:

» Revenue from Contracts with Customers-Revenue is recognized oh the basis of approved contracts
regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

- Revenue is measured at the fair vaiue of con5|derat|on recewed or receivable taking into account the
amount of discounts, incentives, volume rebates e ot nounts receivable from



the customer are recognised as revenue after the control over the goods sold are transferred to the customer
which is generally on dispatch / delivery of goods.

. Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at
contract inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration Is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at
end of each reporting period.

. Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its
customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount
of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that
the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the custorner
pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

. Interest income is recognised using the Effective Interest Method.

{n} Lease :

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contro! the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether

(i) the contract involves the use of identified asset;

i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset thirough the
period of lease and;

(iii) the Company has the right fo direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset {"ROU"} and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The ROU is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease lability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or befare the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, tess any lease incentives received.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that the
option will be exercised.

The RQU is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
end of the lease term.

The lease Liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, and the company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incrementaf
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liahility comprises fixed payments, intluding in-
substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in
an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.



The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except
those which are payable other than functional currency which is measured at fair value through Profit or
Loss. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
terminaticn option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the ROU, or is recorded in Statement of Profit or Loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease Liabilities have been presented in ‘Financial Liabilities’ and the *ROU’ have been presented separately in
the Balance Sheet, Lease payments have been dassified as financing activities in the Statement of Cash
Flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or lower and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term. The related cash flows are dassified as
Operating activities in the Statement of Cash Flows.

{o) Employee benefits:
Gratuity

The gratuity, a defined benefit plan, payable to the employees is based on the Employees” service and last
drawn salary at the time of the leaving of the services of the Company aad is in accordance with the Rules of
the Company for payment of Gratuity. Liability with regards to gratuity plan is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out by a qualified independent actuary at the end
of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets {(excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in
the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in OCI is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset and is recognised in
the Statemnent of Profit and Loss. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

. service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

. net interest expense or income; and

. re-measurement

The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined
by reference to market vields at the end of the reporting petiod on government bonds.

The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to
the plans.



Other employee benefits

A liability is recognised for henefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annuai leave and
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

{r) Income Taxes:

In UAE and Bahrain there is no corporate taxation. Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred
tax charge or credit.

(q) Earnings Per Share:

Basic Eérnings Per Share {"EPS"} is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, nef profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributabie to
the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(n Foreign Currency transactions:

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-menetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of initial
transactions.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Lass in the period in
which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are incuded in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

. Exchange differences relating to qualifying effective cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges in foreign operations which are recognised in OCI.

{s) oreign operations:

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition are translated into AED, the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into AED at the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity (as exchange
differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation), except to the extent that the
exchange differences are allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence or
joint control is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange differences related to that foreign operation
recognized in OCI is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss as part of the gain or ioss on disposal. If the



Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is re-allocated to NCI. When the Group disposes of only a part of its interest in an
associate or a joint venture while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(t) Financial Instruments:

A Financial Instrument s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of ancther entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
Company becomes a party te the contractual provisions of the instruments,

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of finandial assets and finandal liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial labilities at
fair vafue through profit or loss are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the
financial assets or financial liabilities.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, Fair Value through

Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI™) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (*"FVTPL") on the basis of
following:

il the entity’s businass model for managing the financial assets and
= the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Amortised Cost:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

In case of financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost, any interact incama  farcian gvrhanna
|2ins ~r Insses and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit a

Fair Value through OCI:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions
are met:

. the Anancial asset is held within a business model whose objedlive is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through OCI.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

For financial assets at FVTPL, net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
the Statermnent of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subseguent Measurement: Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or *other financial liabilities’.
Financial Liabilities at FVYTPL:

Financial liabilities are dlassified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is a derivative
(except for effective hedge) or are designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL.

Gains or Losses, including any interest expense on liabilides held for trading are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables} are subsequently measured at
amartised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exachy discounts estimated future cash payments (including afl
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the amortised cost on initial recognition.

Interest expense (based an the effective interest method), foreign exchange gains and losses, and any gain
or loss on de-recognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than
financials assets in FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the
Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the
reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition.
The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset
increases significantly since its initial recognition.

The Company’s trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and as per simplified
approach, loss allowances on trade receivables are measured using provision matrix at an amount equal to
life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shorttfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.



De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially ali the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially alt the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and recognises an associated liability for amounts it has to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities

Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities are disclosed in financial statemenis in accordance with Ind AS 37 -
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

{u) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits
with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value
and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

(v} Financial liabilities and equity instruments:
. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liabifity and
an equity instrument.

" Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds
received.

(w) Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts, interest
rate swaps and cross currency swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate, foreign exchange rate risks and
commodity prices. The Company does not hold derivative finandal instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recagnised in profit or loss immediately exclud'== ===t == d==izosbed oo eeeb By hedge.



(x) Hedge accounting:

The Company designates certain hedging instrurents in respect of foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and commodity price risk as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument is
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in OCI and accumulated under equity. The gain or ioss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or toss.

Amounts previously recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity relating to effective portion as described
above are reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss in the pericds when the hedged item affects the
Statement of Profit or Loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financiai liabflity, such gains
and losses are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial
asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge acoounting. Any gain or loss recognised in OCT and
accumulated in equity at that ¥ime remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss. Wiven a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to oceur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the Statement of Proft and
Loss.

(y) Segiment Reporting: Identification of Segments:

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM™) to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available.
Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business
segments and geographic segments,

(z) Goodwill:

Goodwill arising out of Consolidation of financial statements of subsidiaries are tested for impairment at each
reporting date.

(aa) Business Combination:

The Company applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations, The consideration
transferred by the Company to obtain control of a business is calculated as the sum of the fair values of
assets transfetred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Company as at the acquisition
date i.e. date on which it obtains control of the acguiree which includes the fair value of any asset or liability
arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred, except to the extent related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
<air values on acquisttion-date,



Intangible Assets acquired in a Business Combination and recognised separately from Goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date {which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible Assets acquired in a Business Combination are reported at cost
lass accumulated amortisation and accumnulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Goodwil! is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. Such goodwill is tested annually for impairment. If the fair value of the net
assets acqguired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the excess is termed as bargain
purchase.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recegnizing a gain in respect thereof, the Company determines whether
there exists clear evidence of the underiying reasons for dassifying the business combination as a bargain
purchase thereafter, the Company reassesses whether it has correctly identified all the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed and recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are so identified, any gain thereafter
is recognised in OCI and accumnulated in equity as Capital Reserve. If there does not exist clear evidence of
the underlying reasons for classifying the Business combination as a bargain purchase, the Company
recognises the gain, after reassessing and reviewing, directly in equity as Capital Reserve,

Contingent consideration is classified efther as equity or financial liability. Amount classified as financial
lfability are subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

(ab) Discontinued Operations:

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cashflows of which can
be clearly dis guished from those of the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations and

- Is a part of single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations; or
- Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative Statement of Profit and Loss is
represented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

mute 1{B) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and fiabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.



(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies:

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements,

{i} Classification of Lease Ind AS 116:

Ind AS 116 Leases requires a lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such opticn is reasonably certain. The
Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In
evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the
underlying fease to the Company’s operations taking inte account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

{b) Key assumptions:

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilittes within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(i} Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the
economic fife of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically
and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the
remaining useful life of the assets.

{ii) Impairment of Assets:

The Company reviews its carrying value of assets annually where there is an indication of impairment by
estimating the future economic benefits from using such assets if the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amounnt, the impairment loss is accounted for.

(iii)  Fair value measurement of finandal instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair vaiue is measured using valuation techniques
including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.



(iv} Defined benefit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

(v) Share-based payments:

The Company measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Binomial tree madel to
determine the fair value of the liability incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair value for share-based
payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on
the terms and conditions of the grant.

This estimate alsa requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in Note 43,

34) Principles of Consolidation:

These Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS} are prepared on the foltowing basis in acoordance with Ind AS
on “Consolidated Financial Statements” (Ind AS — 110), and "Disclosure of interests in other entities” (Ind AS
—112), specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

()] Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the company. The company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consclidated
financial statements from the date on which controls commences untit the date on which control ceases.

(i) Non-controlling interest {NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the company’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transadtions.

(iii) Loss of control

When the company loses control over @ subsidiary, it derecegnizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained n the former subsidiary is
measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recagnized in profit or loss,

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

The financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries used in the consolidation procedure are drawn
upto the same reporting dates i.e. March 31, 2022.

The Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incoma and expenses.
Intra- company balances and transactions, and any ur =~ | " from intra-group



transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. The Company follows uniform accourting policies for
like transactions and other events in simifar circumstances.

The Consolidated Fnancial Statements are comprised of the financial statements of the members of the
Group as under:

Name of the Company Principal %4 Shareholding and
Place of Voting Power
Business —
As at As at

31 Mar 22 31 Mar 21

| {A)  Subsidiary Companies:

| 1) Arabian Cement Industry LLC.@ U.AE 100% 100%
i) Star Cement Co. LL.C., RAK @ UA.E 100% 100%
ilf) Star Cement Co. L.L.C., Dubai @ U.AE 100% 100%
iv) Al Nakhla Crusher Co. L.L.C. @ U.A.E 100% 100%
v} UlraTech Cement Bahrain Co. WLL ( Formerly . o

known as Arabian Gulf Cement Co. WLL)# Bahrain 100% 100%
vi}) Star Super Cement Industries LLC {formerly known

as Binani Cement _Factory LLC) (SSCILLOI@A UAE 100% 100%
vii} Binani Cement (Tanzania} Limited* Tanzania 100% 100%
vili) BC Tradelink Limited., Tanzania* Tanzania 100% 100%
ix) Binani Cement (Uganda) Limited* Liganda 100% 100%

@ 51% held by nominee as required by local law for beneficial interest of the company

# 1 shares held by hominee for the beneficial interest of the company (to comply with minimum no. of
shareholders)

~Subsidiary of UCMEIL w.ef. Novernber 23, 2020

* Wholly owned subsidiary of SSCILLC. Investment and net assets related to these subsidiaries are completely
written off from Group financial information on the date of acqulsition. Group is in process to complete the
necessary ‘egal formalities for the liquidation of these subsidiaries. Notes on Acmounts of the financial
statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries are set out in their respective financial statements,

35} Goodwill on Consolidation: Goodwill represents the difference between the Company’s share in the
net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in the
subsidiaries. For this purpose, the Company’s share of net worth is determined on the basis of the fatest
Anancial statements prior to the acquisition after making necessary ddjustments for material events between
the date of such financia! statements and the date of respective acquisition.

36) ContingentLiabilities (to the extent not provided for} (Ind AS 37):

INR Crores.

]
a)} | Claims not acknowledged as debts Mar-22 Mar-21
i} | Others 2.24 2.64

37} Capital and other commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital acoount not provided for (net of advances)
INR 0.97 Crores (previous year INR 6.67 Crores). '

38) Employee Benefits (Ind AS 19):

{A) Defined Benefit Plans:



(a) Gratuity:

The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of
leaving the services of the Company and is in accordance with the Rules of the Company for payment of

gratuity.

Inherent Risk

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks
pertaining to the plan. In particular, this exposes the Company to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth,
change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets. This may result in an increase
in cost of providing these benefits to employee in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is
not subject to any longevity risks.

in INR Crores
As at Ma'ar\f:hagl,
SL | Particulars March 31, 2022 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{(Others) {Others)
Change in defined benefit obligation
(1} | Balance at the beginning of the year 27.41 22.53
Related to discontinued operations/Tif on Acquisition - 3.13
Adjustment of: - -
Current Service Cost 2.69 2.22
Past Service cost - -
Interest Cost 0.86 1.11
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in Other Comprehensive i} A
Incame:
- Change in Financial Assumptions {0.99} 4.90
- Change in Demographic Assumptions - -
- Experience Changes 0.39 {1.24)
-Exchange rate variances 1.00 {0.84)
Benefits Paid (3.44) {4.40)
Balance at the end of the year 27.92 27.41
(ii) | Net Asset / {Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation (27.92) {(27.41)
Net Asset / {Liability) in the Balance Sheet (27.9™ (27.41)
(iii) Expenses recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 2.69 2.22
Past Service cost - -
Interest Cost 0.86 1.11
Related to discontinued operations - -
Total Expense 3.55 3.33
) Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income {OCI):
Changes in Financial Assumptions (0.99) 4,90
Change in Demographic Assumptions - -
Experience Adjustments 0.39 {1.24)
Related to discontinved operations - -
Amou.nt recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (0.60) 3.66
{OCI):
(v) | Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Within the next 12 months : 2.59 2.70




As at

Asat

March 31,
SL | Particulars March 31, 2022 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{Others) {Others)
Between 1 and 5 years 5.53 4.86
Between 5 and 10 years 9.05 8.17
10 Years and above 21.76 23.83
Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions:*
Increase/{Decrease) on present value of defined
benefits obligation at the end of the year
1% increase in discount rate (2.48) (2.52)
1% decrease in discount rate 2.89 2.95
1% increase in salary escalation rate 2.86 291
1% decrease in salary escalation rate {2.51) {2.53)
1% increase in employee turnover rate 0.13 (D.06)
1% decrease in employee turnover rate {0.16) 0.19

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of

(vi) total plan

Insurer Managed Funds

Total

{vii){ Actuarial Assiwnptions:

Discount Rate (p.a.) 2.72%-5.38% | 2.76%-5.63%

Turnover Rate 2.00%-3.15% | 2.00%-3.15%

. UK Martality
Mortality tables UK Mortality Table | 1op aman
AM92 [UK]
[UK]
. 3.00%-
0=
Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 2.50%-3.00% 5.00%
Retirement age :
Management - 60 60
Non-Management- 58 58
(vii] Weighted Average duration of Defined benefit 7.88-12.86 7.73-14.27

obligation

* These Sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit abligation in isolation
and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no
changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses.

(ix) Salary Escalation Rate:

The estimates of future salary increases are considered taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors.

(A) Amount recognised as an expense in respect of Compensated Absences is INR 1.20 Crores, (Previous
Year INR 0.92 Crores.)
{B) Amount recognised as expense for other long term employee benefits is INR 3.54 Crores. (Previous
Year INR 3.33 Crores)

39) Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108):

The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of cement and cement related products. As per Ind AS
10B “Operating Segments”, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, there are no reportable
segments applicable to the company. The Company’s revenue from continuing operations from external



customers by location of operations and information about its non-current assets by location of assats are

detailed below,

Amount in INR Crores

Revengﬁ:::nr:lel.i-sxternal Non-Current Assets
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended As at As at
31-March-22 31-Mar-21 31-March-22 31-Mat-21
UAE (Country of Domicile) 949.74 817.56 2,212.67 2,220.68
Others 510.88 323.12 244.71 245.93
Total 1,459.82 1,140.68 2,457.38 2466.61
40) Related party disclosures {Ind AS 24):

Names of Related Parties with whom transactions were carried out during the period:

Name of Related Party

Relationship

Ultra Tech Cement Limited

Holding Company

PT UltraTech Mining Indonesia

Fellow Subsidiary

Star Super Cement Industries LLC

Fellow Subsidiary

UltraTech Cement Lanka {Pvt.) Ltd.

Holding Company” s Subsidiary

Mr. Pramod Rajgaria

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Nilesh Garg

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

a) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of

business:

Amount in INR Crores

Mature of Transactions/ Relationship

Year Ended

Year Ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Sale of Goods:

Star Super Cement Industries LLC (1% Apr 20-30™ Nov 20)

83.77

UltraTech Cement Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd.

156.80

5.89

Purchase of Gootds:

Star Super Cement Industries LLC (1™ Apr 20-30% Nov 20)

13.62

Recharge of Expenses:

Uttra Tech Cement, Limited

Finance Charges payable

Parent Company (UltraTech Cement Ltd)

1.18

1.12

Rendering of Services:

Star Super Cement Industries LLC (1% Apr 20-30t Nov 20)

0.68

0.68

Receiving of Services:

KMP

4.07

3.50

b) Outstanding balances:

Nature of Transactions/ Relationship

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Trade Receivable:

Holding Company’ s Subsidiary {Star Super Cement
Industries LLC)

UitraTech Cement Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd.

8§2.80

5.90

Long Term Borrowings

Non-Convertible Redeemable preference shares:

Parent company : UltraTech Cement Limited

1,061.09

1,023.55




Nature of Transactions/ Relationship

Year Ended

Year Ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Other Financial Liabilities:

Parent Company (UltraTech Cement Ltd)

1.18

1.13

Fellow Subsidiary (PT UltraTech Cement Indonesia)

3.41

3.26

c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Company:

Amount in INR Crores

Year Ended

Nature of Transactions/ Relationship

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Short-tern empioyee benefits 0.67 0.83
Other Long term benefits - 0.13
Total 0.67 0.96

Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties:

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. QOutstanding balances at the year-end of the
period are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

41) Earnings per Share (EPS) (Ind AS 33):

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars

Year Ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

(A) Basic EPS:

(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders from

AED) (A)()/ (iii}

o . 91.72 90.62
Continuing Operations
(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders from i} .
Discontinued Operations
Met Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (i+ii) 91.72 90.62
(i} Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 34 369,140 26 875 54
(NOS.] ¥ L4 ’ ’
Basic EPS-Continuing operations{in AED} {i)/(iil) 26.69 30.33
Basic EPS-Discontinued operations{in AED} (ii}/{iif) - -
Basic EPS-Continuing & Discontinued operations(in
AED) (i+ii)/(iif) 26.69 30.33
(B) Diluted EPS:
(i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares
Outstanding(Nos.) 34,369,140 29,875,594
(i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding
for calculation of Dilutive EPS (Nos.) 34,369,140 29,875,594
Diluted EPS-Continuing operations(in AED) (A){i}/ 26.69 30.33
(iii) ' )
Diluted EPS-Discontinued operations(in AED) (A)(i)/ - )
(iii}
Diluted EPS-Continuing & Discontinued operations(in 26.69 10.33




42)  Auditors’ remuneration including remuneration for Subsidiaries” Auditors {excluding VAT)
and expenses:
Amount in INR Crores

. Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(a) Statutory Auditors:
Audit fees (including quarterly Limited Review) 1.13 1.05
Fees for other services 0.07 0.09
Tax audit fees 0.07 0.07

43) Employee Share based payment

The Company has granted __ options (including Restricted Stock units) to its eligible employees in various
ESOS Schemes, details are as under:

(A) Employee Stock Qption Scheme (ESOS 2018) including Stock options, Restricted Stock Units (RSU) and
Stock Appreciaticn Rights Scheme—2018 (SAR 2018) inciuding Stock options and RSU

Tranche I {SAR, 2018} Tranche II (SAR, 2018B)
Particulars RSU Stock RSU-FY22 | RSU-FY21 Stock
Options Plan Plan Options
Nos. of Options 1,084 3,924 159 320 1,398
Graded Graded
Graded Vesting - Vesting -
Veostlng B 50% every | 33% every
25% e;ery year after year after-1
0 year ? er 1 100% on completion year from
Vesting Plan 100% on year from 22.07.2024 | of 1 year date of
18.12.2021 dal::? of grant, from date of | grant,
suh;ec_t o grant subject to
acr;evmg achieving
pertormance performance
targets targets
3 Years from | 3 Years from | 3 Years from | 3 Years from | 3 Years from
Exercise Period the date of the date of the date of | the date of | the date of
Vesting Vesting Vesting Vesting Vesting
Grant Date 18.12.2018 18.12.2018 | 22.07.2021 | 22.07.2021 | 22.07.2021
Exercise F e
7 .
(in INR per share) 10 4,009.30 10 10 A24.70
Fair Value on the
date of Grant of
Option (in INR per 3,946.28 1,538.93 6,836.65 7,160.13 1,386.90
share)
Method of
Settlement Cash Cash Cash Cash Cash




(8) Movement of Options Granted including RSU along with weighted average exercise price
(WAEP):

The Company has granted 1,877 SAR to its employees during the previous year with a weighted average
exercise price of INR 5,532.51 per share and weighted average fair value of INR 2,832.79 per share. The
weighted average remaining contractual life for SAR is 2.87 years.

(¢) Fair Valuation:

The fair value of options has been done by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes Model/ Binomial Model.

The Key assumptions in the Black-Scholes Madel for calculating fair value as on the date of grant:

(a) For ESOS — SAR 2018:

1 | Risk Free Rate 5.31% (Tranche II) |
"ption Life fay For Cptions - Vesting period (1 Year) + Average of exarcise
period

{b) For RSU under FY21 plan — Vesting period {2 Years) +
Average of exercise for other RSU-Vesting period (3 years)+
Average of exercise periad

3 | Expected Volatility* Tranche-II: 0.25, |

4 | Dividend Yield Tranche -II: 0.19%

The Key assumptions in the Binomial Tree Model for calculating fair value as on the date of grant:

{b) For ESOS — SAR 2018:

1 | Risk Free Rate 7.47% (Tranche I)
2 | Option Life {a) For Options - Vestng period {1 Year) + Average of exercise
period
b) For RSU-Vesting period (3 years) 4+ Average of exercise
period

3 | Expected Volatility™ Tranche-I: 0.24,

4 | Dividend Yield Tranche -1; 0.46%

*Expected volatility on the Company’s stock price on National Stock Exchange based on the data
commensurate with the expected life of the options/RSU’s up to the date of grant.

{D) Details of Liabilities arising from Company’s cash settied share based payment transactions:
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Other non-current abilities 0.47 0.60
Other current liabilities 0.54 0.20
Total carrying amount of liabilities 1.01 0.80




44)  A) Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Ind AS ~ 107):
Amount in INR Crores
As at As at
. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Particulars - - - -

Carrying Fair Carrying | Fair Value

Value Value Value

Financial Assets at Amortised cost
Investments (non-current) 0.28 0.28 0.27 0.27
Trade receivables 511.92 511.92 370.81 370.81
Loans 13.56 13.56 12.98 12,98
Cash and bank balances 41.35 41.35 66.66 66.66
Other Financial Asset 144.79 144.79 138.07 138.07
Total 711.90 711.90 588.79 588.79
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Foreign Currency Barrowings 1,061.09 | 1,061.09 | 1,316.00 | 1,316.00
Cash Credits/Working Capital Borrowing 303.59 303.59 0.84 0.84
Trade payables 400.02 400.02 200.33 200.33
Other financial liabilities 14.76 14.76 393.68 392.68
Fair Value Hedging Instruments:
Derivative Liability 0.34 0.34 3.78 3.78
Total 1,779.80 | 1,779.80 | 1,914.63 | 1,914.63

B)

Fair Value Measurements (Ind AS 113):

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in an orderly transaction in the principal (or mest advantageous) market at measurement date
under the current market condition regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
other valuation techniques.

The company has established the following fair vaiue hierarchy that categorises the values into 3 levels. The
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value of financial instruments are:

Level 1: This hierarchy uses quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (For example traded
bonds, over the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The mutual fund units
are valued using the closing Net Asset Value. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Levet 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.
in INR Crores

Fair Value

Particulars As at

March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Fair value Hedge Instruments

0.34 3.78

Derivative liability — Level 2

The management assessed that the carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans,
trade payables, cash credits, commercial papers and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their
fair values largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a) The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves and an appropriate discount factor.



(s} The fair value of the remaining financial instrurments is determined using discounted cash flow
analysis. The discount rates used is based on rmanagement estimates.

Financial Risk Management Objectives (Ind AS 107):

The company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprises of borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilffties is to finance the company’s operations. The
cormnpany’s principal financial assets other than derivatives include trade and other receivables, investments
and cash and cash equivaients that derive directly from its operations.

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. Company’s overall risk
managemnent focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company. The company uses derivative financial instruments such
as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts, principal only swaps, cross currency
swaps that are entered to hedge foreign currency risk exposure, interest rate swaps to hedge variable
interest rate exposure and commodity fixed price swaps to hedge commodity price risks. Derivatives are used
exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

The several sources of risks which the company is exposed to and their management are given
below:

Risk Exposure Arising From Measurement | Management
Committed commercial | Cash Flow | (a)Forward foreign exchange
Foreign Currency tr.ansa(_:tion . Fore(.:a_s.ting contraci.s .
Risk Financial asset and Liabilities | Sensitivity (b)Foreign currency options
not denominated in AED &USD | Analysis {c)Principal only/Currency
swaps
Long Term Borrowings at | Sensitivity {a)Interest Rate swaps
. variable rates Analysis,
Interest Rate Risk Interest rate
movements
Trade receivables, | Ageling analysis, | (@)Credit limit & credit
Credit Risk Invesl?nen.ts, Derivative | Credit Rating wortr?ine.ss monitoring,
financial instruments, Loans (b)Criteria based approval
and Bank balances process
Borrowings, Other Liahilities | Rolling cash | (a)Adequate unused credit
Liguidity Risks and liquid investrments flow forecasts lines and borrowing fadlities
Broker Quotes
Movement in  prices  of | Sensitivity (a)Commodity Fxed Prices
Commuodity Price cormmmodities mainly Imported | Analysis, (bYSwaps/Options
Risk Thermal Coal and pet coke Commodity
price tracking

I} Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a
change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of
changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commaodity prices, equity prices and other
market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk
sensiive financial instruments including investments and depesits, foreign currency receivables, payables and
borrowings.



A) Foreign Currency Risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign
currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the foreign currency borrowings, import of fuels, raw
materials & spare parts, capital expenditure, exports of cement and the Company’s net investments in foreign
subsidiaries.

When a derivative is entered intc for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of
those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure,

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company
follows established risk management policies and standard operating procedures. It uses derivative

instruments like foreign currency swaps and forwards to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.

Amount in INR Crores

Outstanding foreign currency exposure as at : As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Borrowings Nil Nil

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the company’s short term borrowing (excluding commercial papet) with
floating interest rates. For all long-term borrowings with floating rates, the risk of vatiation in the interest
rates is mitigated through interest rate swaps. The company constantly monitors the credit markets and
rebalances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

Interest rate exposure:
Amount in INR Crores

Total Floating Fixed rate Non-Interest
Particulars borrowings rate borrowings bearing
borrowings borrowings

AED 303.59 303.59 - -
Usb 1,061.09 - 1,061.09 -
BHD - - - -
Total as at March 31, 2022 1,364.68 303.59 1,061.09 -
AED - - ~ -
usbD 1,535.34 - 1,535.34 -
BHD 0.84 0.84 - -
Total as at March 31, 2021 1,536.18 0.84 1,535.34 -

Note: Interest rate risk hedged for FCY borrowings has been shown under Fixed Rate borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivities for unhedged exposure (impact of increase in 100 bps):
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
AED - -
RHD (0.01) (0.01)

v I the rate is decreased by 100 bps profit will increase by an equal amount



Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated assuming the borrowings outstanding at reporting date have
been outstanding for the entire reporting pericd. Further, the calculations for the unhedged fioating rate
borrowing have been done on the notional value of the foreign currency (excluding the revalugtion).

Forward Exchange and Interest Rates Swaps Contracts:

(A) Derivatives for hedging interest rates, outstanding are as under;
Amount in INR Crores
. As at As at Cross
Particulars Purpose | CUMTNCY | march 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | Cumrency
Other Derivatives:
Interest Rate Swap (IRS) ECB* usD 303.17 511.78 AED

*External Commercial Borrowings

Interest rates outstanding receive fixed and pay floating contracts:

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars As at Average contracted Nominal Fair Value
fixed interest rates Amount Assets
{Liabilities)
Less than 1 year March 31,2022 1.0397% 303.17 (0.34)
Less than 1 year March 31,2021 1.0397% 219.33 (1.62)
1 to 2 years March 31, 2021 1.0397% 292.45 (2.16)

Recognition of gains / (losses) under forward exchange & interest rates swaps contracts
designated under cash flows hedges:
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
Effective Hedge Ineffective Effective Hedge Ineffective
(OCI) Hedge (Profit (OCI) Hedge {Profit
and Loss) and Loss)
(Loss)/Gain 3.52 (2.15]

IT} Credit Risk Management:

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing/investing activities, including deposits with
banks/Financial Institutions, mutwal fund investments, and investments in debt securities, foreign exchange
transactions and financial quarantees. The company has ne significant concentration of credit risk with any
counterparty,

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy
for each customer and based on the evaluation credit limit of each customer is defined. Wherever the
Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by either bank quarantee / letter of credit
or security deposits.

Total Trade receivables as on March 31, 2022 is INR 511.92 Crores (March 31, 2021 INR 370.81 Crores).
The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. Single largest customer
has total exposure in sales 7.94 % (Previous Year 8.84%) and in receivables 3.54% (Previous Year
6.84%).

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using
a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting
date wherever outstanding is for longer periad and involves hiaher rick



As per policy the provision for impairment loss fs calculated on different buckets based on weighted average
loss rates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experienced over the past 3 years.
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Opening provision 64.11 1.68
Add: on Account of Star Super Acquisition - 50.16
Add: Provided during the year 1.25 12.96
Less: Utilised during the year {5.51) -
Less : FCTR {2.35 (0.69)
Closing Provision 62.20 64.11

Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalent and Bank Deposit

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the
said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions who have been assigned high credit rating
by international and domestic rating agencies.

Credit Risk on Derivative Instruments is generally low as Group enters into the Derivative Contracts with the
reputed Banks and Financfal Institutions.

Total Non-current and current investments as on March 31, 2022 is INR (.28 Crores. {March 31, 2021 INR
0.27 Crares.)

Financial Guarantees:
The Company has net exposure of INR 7,31 Crores, (Previous Year INR 7.31 Crores).

Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company wili not be abie to settle or meet its obligations on time
or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations
when due. The company’s treasury team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
Management monitors the company’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash
fiows.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities and
investments held for managing the rigk at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Amount in INR Crores

Less than 1toc5 More than
As at March 31, 2022 1 year Years Syears Total
Borrowings (including current maturities of )
long-term debts) 303.59( 1,061.09 1,364.68
Trade payables 400.02 - - 400.02
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.03 - - 0.03
Other financial liabilities 19.38 136.06 - 155.44
Derivative Liability 0.34 - - 0.34
Amount in INR Crores
Less than l1tos More than
As at March 31, 221 1 year Years Syears Total
Borrowings (including current maturities of _
long-term debis) 220,18 | 1,316.00 1,536.18
Trade payables 200.33 - - 200.33
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.05 - - 0.05
Cther financial lizbilities 18.03 87.16 140.15 245.34




As at March 31, 2021 Less than 1to5 More than Total
. 1 year Years Syears
Derivative Liability 3.78 - 3.78

45) Capital Management (Ind AS 1):

Company’s objectives when managing capital are to {a) maximise shareholder value and provide henefits for
other stakeholders and (b) maintain an optimal capitat structure to reduce the cost of capital
- For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital, share
premium and ail other equity reserves attributable to the equity holdersmonitors capital using debt-equity
ratio, which is total debt less related fixed deposits divided by total equity.

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total Debt 1,364.68 1,536.18
Equity 1,411.08 1,267.07
Liquid Investments and Bank Deposits 34.10 51.17
Debt to Equity (Net) 0.94 1.17

46} Assets/Disposal Group held for Sale (Ind AS 105):

The company has identified one of the assets “Waste Heat Recovery System” {(WHRS) which is not useful
anymore as it is not productive and not giving the desired result. The realizable value after considering the
impairment, scrap and dismandtling cost is reclassified as assets for disposal. The company is in the process of
discussion with vendors and contractor and expects the same to be disposed off within the due course.

As regards to the subsidiaries classified as Asset held for disposal refer note 32

47)  The Company is primarily in the Business of manufacture and sale of cement and cement related
products. The product shelf life being short all sates are made at a point in time and revenue recognised upon
satisfaction of the performance obligations which are typically upon dispatch / delivery. The Company has a
credit evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the trade receivables are established. The
Company does not give significant credit period resulting in no significart financing component. The
Company, however, has a policy for replacement of the damaged goods.

{A) Reconciliation of revenue recognised from Contract liability:
Amount in INR Crores

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
0.94 0.98

Particulars
Closing Contract liability-Advance from Customers

(B) Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in statement of profit and
loss:

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue as per Contract price 1,484.40 1,158.24
Less: Discounts and incentives (24.58) (17.56)
Revenue as per statement of profit and loss 1,459.82 1,140.68

48B) Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with cusrent

year classification / disclosure,

49) The current outbreak of the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") has caused severe disruptions in the Indian

and global economy.

The global impact of the outbreak continues, with many countries instituting quarantines and restrictions
on travel, closing financial markets and/or restricting trading, and limiting operations of non-essential



businesses. Such actions adversely impacted many industries, including ours, resulting in a period of
business disruption for our manufacturing operations and supply chains, as well as severe declines in
demand for construction more generally.

The duration and extent of the impact from the COVID-19 pandemic depends en future developments
that cannot be accurately predicted at this time, such as the future severity and transmission rate of the
virus, the extent and effectiveness of containment actions, induding new-found vaccines, and the timing
and scale of their implementation, and the impact of these and other factors on our employees,
customers, suppliers and partners.

The Company expects to recover the carrying amount of all its assets induding inventory, receivables
and loans in the ordinary course of business based on information available on current economic

conditions. The Company is continuously monitoring any material changes in future economic
conditions.

Signatures to Note "1’ to ‘49’ For and on behalf of the Board

In terms of our reports attached.

Dubai, April 25% ,2022 Director









PT UltraTech Investments Indonesia — Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1

Significant Accounting Policies:

(a)

(b)

©)

(d)

(e)

Basis of Accounting:
The finandal statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with Finandial Reporting Controls Manual of UltraTech Cement

Limited.
Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Financial Reporting Controls Manual of
UltraTech Cernent Limited reguires estimates and assumptlons to be made that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the finandial statements, the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period and the disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as of the date of the financlal statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in the current and future perlods. Difference between actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialise.

Property, Plant and Equipments

Fixed assets, whether tangible or Intangible, are stated at cost less accumnulated depreciation /
impairment loss {if any), net of Modvat / Cenvat (wherever claimed). The cost of fixed assets
indudes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses (including borrowing cost, if
capitalisation criteria are met ) incurred in relation to their acquisition and bringing the assets for
their intended use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date and
the cost of fixed assets not ready for their intended use before such date are disclosed under capital
work-in-prograss.

Fixed Assets held for disposal are stated at lower of net book value and net realizable vaiue.

Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line basis to write down the cost less estimated residual
value of equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows :

Years
Buildings 30
Vehides 5
Computer and Office equipment 34
Furniture and Fixtures 7

Treatment of expenditure during construction period:

Expenditure / Income, during construction period is included under Capital-Work-in-Progress and the
same is allocated to the respective Fixed Assets on the completion of their construction.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

The assets and liabiliies, both monetary and non-monetary, of the foreign entity should be
translated at closing rate. Income and expense items of the foreign entity should be translated at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions (a rate that approximates the actual exchange rates,



PT UltraTech Investments Indonesia — Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(9)

(h)

for example, an average rate for the period may also be used). All resulting exchange differences
should be dassified as equity until the disposal of the net investment.

Impairment of Assets:

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is an indication of
impairment based on the internal and extemnal factors.

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss, if any, is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which the asset is
identified as impaired. Reversal of impairment loss recognised in prior years is recorded when there
is an indication that impairment loss recognised for the asset no longer exists or has been
decreased.

Revenue Recognition:

Interest income is recognized on accrual basls.

Provisions:

Pravisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is
prabable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a

reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

(i) Eamings Per Share:

The basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS™) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year,
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11. Related Party Transaction

{a) lnterest \ncome n 100:

F in rrarae

Star Cement LLC, RAK

{b) Inter Corporate Deposit:

Star Cement LLC, RAK 3.14 2.87
{C) Interest on ICD receivable:
Star Cement LLC, RAK 0.42 0.21
57 N
Mumbai, April 20, 2022 Authorised Stghatory

M B Agarwal






Revenue
Other Income
Total Income (I)

Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses (II}

Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax {PBIDT) {I)-{1I}
Profit bafore Tax

Tax Expenses

Profit After Tax

Earnings Per Equity Share
Basic {in ¥}

Note

10

AEr 21 = Mar 77

I Apr 20 Mar

-1

Date : April 20, 2022
Murmbai

Authori

-

Signatory
M B Agarwal



PT UltraTech Mining Indonesia

(a)

(b)

(<)

(d)

Note 1

Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting:

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Financial Reporting Controls Manual of
UltraTech Cement Limited.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of finandal statements in conformity with Financial Reporting Controls
Manual of UltraTech Cement Limited requires estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements,
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period and the
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future
periods. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in
which the results are known or materialise.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Fixed assets, whether tangible or intangible, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation/impairment foss (if any), net of Modvat/Cenvat {(wherever claimed). The cost of
fixed assets includes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses (including borrowing
cost, if capitalisation criteria are met) incurred in relation to their acquisition and bringing the
assets for their intended use,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date
and the cost of fixed assets not ready for their intended use before such date are disclosed
under capital work-in-progress.

Fixed Assets held for disposal are stated at lower of net book value and net realizable value,

Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line basis to write down the cost less estimated
residual value of equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows .

Years
Buildings 30
Vehicles 5
Computer and Office equipment 34
Furniture and Fixtures 7

Treatment of expenditure during construction period:

Expenditure/Income, during construction period is included under Capital-Work-in-Progress
and the same is allocated to the respective Fixed Assets on the completion of their
construction.
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(e)

(n

(9)

(h)

0]

@

Foreign Currency Transactions:

The assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-moenetary, of the foreign entity should be
translated at closing rate. Income and expense items of the foreign entity should be
translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions {a rate that approximates the
actual exchange rates, for example, an average rate for the period may also be used). All
resulting exchange differences should be classified as equity until the disposal of the net
investment,

Impairment of Assets:

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is an
indication of impairment based on the internal and external factors.

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment |oss, if any, is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in
which the asset is identified as impaired. Reversal of impairment ioss recognised in prior
years is recorded when there is an indication that impairment loss recognised for the asset
no longer exists or has been decreased.

Revenue Recognition:

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.

Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it

is probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and

adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

Mines Restoration Expenditure:

The Company provides for the estimated expenditure required to restore quarries and mines.
The total estimate of restoration expenses is apportioned over the estimate of mineral
reserves and a provision is made based on minerals extracted during the year.

The total estimate of restoration expenses is reviewed periodically, on the basis of technical
estimates.

Eamings Per Share:

The basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS™} is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year,

{k) Operating lease:

Leases where significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases and lease rentals thereon are charged to the Profit
and Loss Account.









PT UltraTech Mining Indonesia

11. Earning per Share (EPS):

F in Mrarar

LA) DayIC CFD.
(i} Net Profit attributable to Equity {0.58) Nil
Shareholders
(i) Weighted average number of Equity | 1,298,775| 1,298,775
Shares outstanding {Nos.)

Basic EPS (i)/(ii) (In Rupee per share) | (4.47) Nil

Mumbai, April 20, 2022 Authorized Signatory
M B Agarwal
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